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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest

only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any

part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”] of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year”) to our
shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group continues to focus on movie
production, licensing and derivatives, crossover marketing and
provision of interactive contents (“Filmed Entertainment, New
Media Exploitations and Licensing Businesses”) and cinema
investment and management (“Cinema Business”).

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment has become the prime revenue generator of the
Group in the Year. Approximately revenue of HK$38.0 million
and gross profit of HK$22.4 million were generated during the
Year. The revenue and gross profit for the Year declined, as
compared to revenue of HK$46.9 million and gross profit of
HK$27.6 million generated in last year. The Group will focus on
expanding the audience headcount and improve the financial
performance of the Cinema Business accordingly.

In the segment of Filmed Entertainment Business, the Group
continued to locate suitable business opportunities. However,
no appropriate target was spotted in the Year. Accordingly, no
revenue was generated in this sector during the Year.

On 9 February 2018, Bingo Movie Development Limited (“Bingo
Movie”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”), an independent
third party, entered into an agreement (the “JV Agreement”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“JV
Company”). The issued share capital of the JV Company will be
owned as to 49% by Bingo Movie and as to 51% by Lechuang.
The JV Company will be principally engaged in investment and
development of VR (Virtual Reality] and MR (Mixed Reality)
projects. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Bingo Movie will enter
into of a loan agreement with the JV Company, pursuant to
which Bingo Movie will advance the loan of not less than HK$25
million and not more than HK$35 million to the JV Company for
investment and development of relevant VR and MR projects. In
September 2018, the loan agreement has been signed and
RMB29.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$33.8 million)
was lent to the JV Company for a one-year term.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$38.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 20.6% as compared with HK$47.9 million for
last year. The HK$38.0 million turnover for the Year (2018:
HK$47.9 million) mainly consisted of the gross revenue of the
Cinema Business of HK$38.0 million (2018: HK$46.9 million).

There were certain one-off gains recorded in last year, including
income from termination of PRC cinema investment contracts
of approximately HK$2.7 million, reversal of over-provision of a
consultancy fee of approximately HK$3.8 million made in prior
years, gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$2.1
million. In addition, depreciation of Renminbi ("RMB") against
Hong Kong Dollars, which caused change from exchange gain
of approximately HK$2.68 million in last year to loss of
approximately HK$3.9 million in the Year, led to the decrease in
other revenue and other net income.

There was overall decrease in the Group's expenses for the
Year as compared to those for fiscal year 2017/18, which
was resulted from implementation of various cost control
measures.

LIQUIDITY, DEBT RATIO, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$115.3 million (2018: HK$145.9 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$60.9
million (2018: HK$96.0 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). As at 31 March
2019, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 0.32 (2018: 0.28).
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

Both the Group’s total assets and liabilities decreased over the
Year. The Group continued to hold strong cash and cash
equivalents as at 31 March 2019 and the Board believes that
the Group has sufficient resources to satisfy its working capital
requirements. During the Year, the Group financed its
operations principally with its own working capital. As at 31
March 20189, the Group did not have any bank overdraft
(2018: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 115 (2018: 111) staff
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong. Total
staff costs including directors’ remuneration were approximately
HK$17.0 million during the Year (2018: HK$16.3 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, save as 30,000,000 share options granted to Ms. Chow
Man Ki Kelly, an executive Director, on 17 September 2018,
no share option was granted to Directors (2018: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises from
receivables from PRC customers and its investment in foreign
subsidiaries which are financed internally in RMB, and payables
to PRC suppliers. In order to mitigate the potential impact of
currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where
necessary. No foreign currency hedge contract was entered
into by the Group during the Year. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group had no outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts
(2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no material capital
commitments (2018: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Details of operating lease commitments are stated in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

OUTLOOK

Owing to the continuing development of the film industry in the
PRC, the Group will continue to grasp other business
opportunities in investments in cinemas in the PRC and
attractive movies. While the Group continued its existing
businesses, the Group will put more focus onto locating other
business opportunities with enormous potentials, including
provision of consultancy services, online games developing and
operating businesses, and investments in China cultural
industry.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

The VR and MR industry is undergoing rapid development and
the Company considers that there will be growth potential in
investment of VR and MR projects. On 9 February 2018, the
Group entered into an agreement with Lechuang in relation to
the formation of the JV Company. The formation of the JV
Company will allow the Group to utilise its experience in
provision of interactive contents with the expertise of Lechuang
in developing VR and MR projects. The Company is optimistic
as to the prospect of the JV Company, and has granted a loan
to the JV Company of RMB23.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$33.8 million) in September 2018.

The Board believes that the Group’s existing businesses can
create a synergistic effect with the above-mentioned new
businesses and will benefit the Group in the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

Lau Man Kit
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 24 June 2019
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi — Mr. Chiau has over 25 years of
performance and management experience in the movie
industry. Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 25
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010. He is currently a director of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly — Ms. Chow was appointed as an
executive Director in January 2014. Ms. Chow has over 20
years’ ample experience in movie production and distribution as
well as licensing businesses. She is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mpr. Lau Man Kit — Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 2014.
Mr. Lau has over 40 years of extensive sales and marketing
experience in various industries, including property
management, computer technology systems and automobiles,
and has a wide business network in China. Mr. Lau is currently
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta — Mrs. Chin has co-
produced various films with the Golden Harvest Group in the
past. Mrs. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in English
Literature from Dominican University of California, USA and a
Master’s Degree in Communication — Documentary film from
Stanford University, USA. Mrs. Chin has more than 30 years’
experience in the film production and distribution industry,
including as an interim CEO in the JC Group. Mrs. Chin joined
the Group in May 2010. Mrs. Chin is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Choi Mei Ping — Ms. Choi has approximately 20 years’
ample marketing experience in the airline industry. She is
currently working in an international airline company. She has
joined the Group in November 2014.

Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk — Mr. Tsoi has over 5 years’ ample
experience in capital markets industry. He is currently working
as the Chief Executive Officer of lce River Investments
International Company Limited. He has joined the Group in
December 2015.

Mr. Ong King Keung — Mr. Ong holds a bachelor degree in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
master degree in corporate finance from the City University of
Hong Kong. He is a member of both the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He is currently a director of a
professional audit firm in Hong Kong, and has over 15 years of
experience in auditing and accounting industry. He has joined
the Group in December 2016.

Mr. Ong is currently a non-executive director of Deson
Construction International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8268),
and an independent non-executive director of each of China
Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855). My Heart
Bodibra Group Limited (stock code: 82397) and Risecomm
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1679). Mr. Ong has
resigned as independent non-executive director of each of China
Candy Holdings Limited (stock code: 8182) with effect from 14
September 2017, KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code:
8226) with effect from 15 September 2017 and Tech Pro
Technology Limited (stock code: 3823) with effect from 18
February 2019. The shares of all these seven companies are
either listed on the main board or GEM of the Stock Exchange.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2018/19

BIFRITESE

BXVztT — EXEIIMEXRRBELN20FE
ETSHELR RENN -—KERMZEAFTT
- BER T —NOF+—AMAKXEH-

EHPWEE — HEEREATSTEAGES
SFEEELR -KEMECTREBRRARA
ATTRAER - KR T —HF+ - AMARER -

IHBAE — TRERBEAETAEEGH S
TREUREEBRTABEERERLEM KA
BEGEAGRREFFAREIMREZ
GE-REARBE HBEXERBMTZESE R
Fi NBFHEEERISFEELR BN _-F
—NETZAMALRER-

TEERHAREREREEBR AR (KKK
55:8268) 2 FATTEERTEKKEEEAR
~E (B HSE:855) L EBEAEFREER
~AE (B RSE:8297) Rin i BREBEZERAR
RA (RO 1679) 2B FEMITEF £
EEER-_F—tEFNAATHAE R_FT—tF
AA+TEBER-ZZ-AF-A+N\BDHIE
EHBERERZEEER AR (BRI 8182)
THREREEGR AR (MK 8226) &
BEMRERARAR (RHAK:3823) 2%
MIFMITER - IB RS ER R AN BMDNEE R
PTEIRKGEM e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREIRE

OVERVIEW

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report for the year ended 31 March
2019 (the “Year”). The Company is concerned to have high
standards of corporate governance. It is important because the
Board believes that good quality corporate governance would
assist the management to monitor the Company’'s business
activities effectively and thus interests of the shareholders of
the Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations discussed in the sections of “CHAIRMAN
AND CHIEF OFFICER” and “APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION
OF THE DIRECTORS” below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’'s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks and
balances to protect the interests of the Group and the
shareholders. The Board will review its composition regularly to
ensure that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills
and experience to continue to effectively oversee the business
of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’'s performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
Directors, including three executive Directors, namely Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly and Mr. Lau Man Kit; one non-
executive Director, namely Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang
Roberta; and three independent non- executive Directors,
namely Ms. Choi Mei Ping, Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk and Mr. Ong King
Keung. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi and Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly are
siblings. Save as disclosed, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) with each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets

REBTAGXEABSK EFRLSEFEIX
BROBEVERENMBM LG AERAHE
FRFLANBERNEMBHNER - RAFE &
REEHFBEERIRELAHERNRBER
SEFRELBRERBEEN Z T A2EHAE
FESXZERIEIEAS -

ARRELHEEZEERSRBEETRR

BMEEENEARERERCE TP MEL Y

i%&mﬁ&ﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁz/ﬂ%uﬁa’éﬁﬁ°{%|3£2$EE#H
FFmT -

RACBEFER SEFHFEFTEEE X8
EEBEMRRAREGZRBIAN TR -FEHRAZ
BriEFMALREFEXEBRZEENE (R

indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which s = ) EARNETET Y S 2 &3 0o
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Note Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
E3nE W5t ESg8E ENZESEE FHMZEEEeR REZE8EE V-1
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi FEEE 1/8) N/ATER  N/ATER  N/ATER 0/(2)
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly AXEZ T 6/(8) N/AT#EA 1/(2) 1) 0/2)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BRERKE 1 4/(8)  N/AT@ERE  N/ATEA  N/ATEAR 1/(1)
Mr. Lau Man Kit e vt 8/(8) N/AT@ER  N/ATER  N/ATER 1/(2)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta ~ BREE¥#i &£ 8/(8) N/AT@ER N/ATER N/ATER 1/2)
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Ms. Choi Mei Ping XTI+ 7/(8) 4/(4) 2/(2) 11 0/(2)
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk BEmELE B6/(8) 3/(4) 2/(2) 11 0/(2)
Mr. Ong King Keung FHRREE 8/(8) 4/4) 2/(2) Uy 0/
Note 1: Resigned on 24 September 2018. Hfat1 - RZZE—-—N\FAAZ+THEBERHI T
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer during the year ended 31 March 2019.
The Board is in the process of locating appropriate persons to
fill the vacancies of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Even so, the Board considers that the existing Board members
are able to share the power and responsibilities of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer among themselves, as detailed
below.

Based on Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The Board’s current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights and
responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss significant
issues he/she concerns, and has the power to make the
decisions among other Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.2,
director who proposes that meeting (the “Convenor”) would

in each Board meeting, the

generally be appointed as the chairman of the meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
and he/she has to ensure all directors briefed on issues arising
at board meeting.

With reference to Code A.2.3, the Convenor has to provide the
meeting agenda and materials (the “Board Papers”) to the
company secretary, and the company secretary will then pass
the Board Papers to other Board members for their review.
it is the Board's
practice that the Board Papers have to be given to the Board

Unless urgent matters to be discussed,

at least 3 days in advance of the Board meetings. Other Board
members should have enough time to read the Board Papers
and raise questions and/or request more information before
holding the Board meetings. For the urgent Board meetings,
the Convenor and/or company secretary have to contact
individual Director about the details of the agenda meeting and
the reasons of urgency. Every Board member has the right to
reqguest additional time to understand the agenda details and
delay the Board meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.4, the executive Directors jointly
provide leadership of the Board, and ensure the Board works
effectively and perform its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. As
mentioned above, all Directors have the rights to propose
Board meetings. The company secretary has to summarise all
agenda items and circulate the agenda to all Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.5, the Board members share the
responsibility to ensure good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. It is the practice of the Board
to discuss corporate governance issues in the meetings to
approve the interim and annual results.

With reference to Code A.2.6, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to
ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Company. The
Convenor has the responsibility to encourage other Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure the Board decisions fairly
reflected Board consensus.

With reference to Code A.2.7, the independent non-executive
Directors hold at least a meeting among themselves annually,
to consider and discuss any significant issues of the Company
and the Board, without influence from the executive Directors.

With reference to Code A.2.8, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of ensuring that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. It is a
general practice that the executive Directors will discuss the
shareholder’s viewpoints with non-executive Directors in the
Board meeting following a shareholders’ meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.9, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of promoting a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors. As mentioned
above, all directors, including non-executive Directors, have the
right to propose a board meeting to discuss the issues they
consider important, and enough time is reserved for all
Directors to read the Board Papers and raise questions. It is
the Board's practice to encourage the non-executive Directors
to raise their viewpoints in Board meetings.

Code A.5.1 states that an issuer should establish a nomination
committee which is chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors. It is the Board's practice
to appoint an executive Director as the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board, as the Board considers
that executive Directors have to lead the business development
of the Company and need to have appropriate Board members
In addition, the
nomination committee of the Board consists of majority of

and senior management to assist them.

independent non- executive Directors, who have the veto power
jointly if they consider the nomination is inappropriate.

With reference to Code B.1.1, the remuneration committee of
the Board would consult Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and the major shareholder of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other executive Directors.

With reference to Code E.1.2, the Board appoints as least one
executive Director to attend the annual general meeting, due to
the chairmanship vacancy. The executive Directors have to
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.

With reference to Code F.1.3, it is the Company’s practice that
the company secretary report to the executive Directors.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles of the Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group
and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.
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The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’'s report
attached to the Group’'s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019 set out in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ka Yin, who is a director of an external service
provider, was appointed as the company secretary in November
2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive Directors of
the Company and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. During the Year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15
hours of professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Choi Mei Ping (Chairman), Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk, Mr. Ong King
Keung and one executive Director, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b)
to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
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proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives; and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive
Directors, and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Group to motivate
executive Directors and senior management by linking their
remuneration with reference to the Group’s operation results,
which reference to individual performances and comparable
market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises Ms.
Chow Man Ki Kelly (Chairman) an executive Director, and all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Choi Mei
Ping, Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk and Mr. Ong King Keung.

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.
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Procedure and Process for Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for

the appointment of Director(s) including independent non-

executive Director(s) in accordance with the following

procedures and process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration
to the current composition and size of the Board, develop
a list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at
the outset to focus the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
considers appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party agency
firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include but are
not limited to:

(a) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others, of gender,
age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length

of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(c) Qualifications, including accomplishment and

experience in the relevant industries in which the
Group’s business is involved;
(d) Independence;

(e) Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to
the Board; and

(g) Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.
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Vi

Vii.

Vii.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it
considers appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, such as interviews, background checks,
presentations and third party reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board's circle of
contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of the remuneration package
of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not
members of the Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director
to acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.

Vi

Vii.

viii.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors and
measureable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background, educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience. All Board appointments
will be based on merit, and candidates will be measured against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee has the delegated
responsibilities to monitor the implementation and review the
board diversity policy and report to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly
reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Commmittee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong King Keung
(Chairman), Ms. Choi Mei Ping and Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk. In the
meetings held during the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual, interim and quarterly results of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board and the management in
respect of the Company’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control system.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consoclidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2018/19

EEEZTEE

SEXECCRMEFESTLCER NWEBEES
BARLAGHEERERESTEZ UL B1RE
TRAMER - Fie - XEES HEER KB
Mk EXER -EFEMARTHARARES
RIFA A EZEBABRFARE GG ROBNE
EFEKEZTTLz R REZEQRERAM
EEERLENESE L TERRLIANESS
HE o

EREAE

ARRERIBEZZEG® ([BRZEE]) X
BIRGEM ERAI$E5.286 2 $£5.33K U E
HETABESRE -EREEGZIZRERTE
BMARBZFREER PHRERFTERS
THRHAESTSRHEBRREZ - BERREEN
ARERIAREBARF ZMBER REkEE
K BB EEFR I E -

RAFE BERZESRE2RBUIFNTESA
B BNEBREL (XF) HEXFLEREDRBE
KL -BRZEERNAFERNRIT 28R LEH
ARBZFE - FHEFERE ARARFLZ
MGER RREENAMEZEFENEETE R
EEERHHEBEER -

LEREISE: 2

EXETHRESHREARARBZEE-R-F
—NWE=ZA=+—H EFUTAEAEMEY
ARRBEBENSBRERELLE 7R IBKE
REREZEHHAMN 2 EATHARE - &t -
EXECRFEREEERAEARAZHEAMH
H*K o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREIRE

The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to the
Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018.

The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems with
an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and the
Company's assets. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements,
errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in achieving the Company's business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 20189, the audit services fee for
the Company’s external auditor was HK$800,000, and no non-
audit service was performed by the Company’s external auditor.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 45 to 51.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective risk management functions are maintained, while
management is required to provide responsive actions to
manage risk. A sound and effective risk management is
designed to identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review
process to enable comprehensive identification and prioritization
of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation of material
risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among
the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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Internal Controls Model and Continuous Improvement

Our internal controls model is based on that set down by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the U.S. Treadway
Commission (“COS0”) for internal controls and has five
components, namely Control Environment; Risk Assessment;
Control Activities; Information and Communication; and
Monitoring. In developing our internal controls model based on
the COSO principles, we have taken into consideration our
organizational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and risk
management system. The initial phase of the plan focused on
adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-based) approach
to risk identification and assessment. This approach enriches
our ability to analyze risks and respond to opportunities as we
pursue our strategic objectives. Management reporting to the
Audit Committee has also been enhanced, including the
presentation of special reports on selected risk topics.

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of treating
the COSO framework as a framework-update exercise, a holistic
approach has been adopted by us, taking into consideration the
Company’'s circumstances, including its ongoing internal
controls and risk management improvement plan as well as
other strategic initiatives (e.g. corporate social responsibility
strategy and reporting). All of these enhance our ultimate
objective to make our risk management system a “live” one that
is practiced on a day-to-day basis by operating units.
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The Board £E£&
Has overall respansibility for the Group’s risk management system and internal controls systems;
BREARASEZEBRERGERAMERGE:
Sets strategic objectives;
HIE R E R
Review the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal control systems;
T aT B B IR 6 e R BR BE AR 2 PR
Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure for our major risks; and
ERIZRBIMERMARERIEE: R
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.
gERER Lz ERHRB T

assessment and

mitigation of risk

at corporate level
[BEmT]
REEEE

“‘Bottom-up”

“Top-down” Identification,
Overseeing, = ment and
identification, Management %32 mitigation of risk

Design, implements, and monitors risk management and internal controls systems; and
Fit BRMEERBRERRABEZHE: &
Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.

FHEARR ST EZBR RENEE-

Audit Committee EREE®
Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and operating
effectiveness of the underlying risk management and internal controls systems
XEERGEERARAIERARBBEREE LA EZEHE 2 Rt REERR

Operational Level & & & &
Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the business; and
FEBER  FELRERR K
Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas
HEBEERBAEBEEAREERF RADEE

at business unit
level and across
functional areas
[BTmL]
MEBEL
[BE RstRae
B HA 5
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Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
has engaged independent professional advisors (the “Advisors”)
to carry out the internal audit functions by performing
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
Advisors have conducted an annual review (the “Annual Review”)
of and made recommendations to improve the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
Based on the Annual Review the Board considered the risk
management and internal controls system effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group has been identified. During
the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions, and their training and budget

were adequate.
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and
dissemination of inside information which sets out the
procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid
placing any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside
information policy also provides guidelines to employees of the
Group to ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory and listing rule
disclosure requirements. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential
inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of
the Company)  (the “Notice”) signed by a shareholder of the
Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the
Company or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such Naotice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the Notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such Naotice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Unit 202, 2/F,
Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including quarterly, interim and annual reports and
public announcements. While the annual general meeting
provides a valuable forum for direct communication between
the Board and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its
website to provide an alternative communication channel for
the public and its shareholders. All corporate communication
and Company's latest updates are available on the Company’s
website for public’s information.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2018/19

MEESERXRREAZERF

fi% 5 A B 5 15 8 B # info@bingogroup.com.hk -
SBEEREHLEBA14-424F R EEEP L
22202 FHRBHAREFTE EMAAXRQ
EEL & R AR -

BEFTEAATREAS FHESEELS
He

REEFENRER

EEHRARAARIETRITEBZES -
ARFRERBEATZERE DRI REE
B2 B AR RN REMEBRRERIBE X
TR R BB RAR 2B -

ARRPEBERTTY BRFERS +HH
ERERARDE  MERRRRESHERE
REPBRAZEFER R BRRBFAE
REFSHARREXKEARREEYS A2
AT EEBUEARARALTRERRERS
—BBREB -FARRBARARBZEMNEM
BRI RANRREEERRALER -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2019 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2018 by operating segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 55. The
Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 180. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Directors’ Business Review” on pages 6 to 10.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper
recycling in offices.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to
anticorruption practices for all employees. The Group regards
honesty, integrity and fair play as its core values that must be
upheld by all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the
Board has instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to
solicit or accept any advantage for themselves or others, from
any person, company or organisations having business dealings
with the Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
leave grants. Competitive remuneration is also offered to
employees and their performance is reviewed on an annual
basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company's operations. Details
of the share option scheme arrangement can be referred to
the “Share Option Scheme” section in this Directors’ report and
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board established a dividend policy (the “Dividend Poalicy”) in
January 2019. The Company endeavours to maintain adequate
working capital to develop and operate the business of the
Group and to provide stable and sustainable return to the
shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take
into account, among other things, the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of
the Group, the general market conditions, any working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
development plans of the Group, the liquidity position of the
Group, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, the
statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time and any other relevant factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company's dividend distribution record in
the past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of
dividends may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and the Company's articles of association and
any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the Dividend Paolicy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible
bonds, share capital and share options during the Year are set
out in notes 26, 27 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 3.64% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to 3.02%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted to
92.55% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
82.37%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (resigned on 24 September 2018)
Mr. Lau Man Kit

Non-executive Director:
Mprs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta

Independent non-executive Directors:
Ms. Choi Mei Ping

Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk

Mr. Ong King Keung

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mrs. Chin Chow
Chung Hang Roberta, Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk and Mr. Ong King
Keung shall retire by rotation in accordance with Article 84(1).
All of them being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2019 and it still considered them to be independent as
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the Year, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or its holding company was a
party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at the time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such
palicy are reviewed annually by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
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the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws 2 %5 - HBEAR D SE ST HA AR IEHA (1)
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified 1REEFEHF LB EEHIEXVEE7 R8N HAME
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions AR AR MBS 2 EHS AR (BIEFSEEE
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short % & Hi & 155 5 B (& U E 1E SR 1EH B 2 1
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such  zZE AR ) « 8k (i) RIEE 5 L S (5] £3521%
provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to 78 &0 A RZ 5P il & 52t 2 #E 25 50K 2 0 3k (i) 1R
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred & GEM R I 55.46E5.67K 6B E it
to herein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of TEAERX SR TBME RN A KRBT 2 1
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the =3 A &

Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company (a) RAEQARBZHE
Approximate

percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held the Company
EARRDF
EBRITRA
EEnS EaEftE RO EE BMYBE D
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi Beneficial owner 110,294,117 3.22%
JB 2 5t S EmEAA
Held by trust (Note 1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
BEFERA (A1)
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly Held by trust (Note 1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
AR 2+ mERERA (HaE1)
Notes: Hiat
1. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal 1. &% )y A Beglobal Investments

Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Global Investment
Limited. Beglobal Investments Limited and Golden Treasure
Global Investment Limited are companies indirectly owned
by a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which
are Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly and their

family.

2. The total number of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2019 was 3,421,538,678.

Limited % Golden Treasure Global
Investment Limited 2 & & & & e
Beglobal Investments Limited X Golden
Treasure Global Investment Limited ¥
REMEETHRABEME S  AXE
T RERBZBEETHRZEEEZA

7o

2. ARARZEBE-AF=A=+—-—HZE
BT A4 81/33,421,538,6790% »

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b) Long positions in the underlying shares of the (b) RAQATHBERGZHR
Company
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 ARAERZZE—_F N \A+HBERMA—
August 2012 which the Board may, at their discretion, TRRERERTE Bl EFGARERDE
offer employees, Directors, or any other persons who HASEELERZER EFHEME
have contributed to the Group to take up share options to A TREEZEL  IRE R E £ 5T 7
subscribe for shares subject to the terms and conditions AR R AR 4N P SREB IR 1 < B AR A o
stipulated in that share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to the Directors RAFE ZESHEETETESTZ2ER
under the Schemes and movements in such holdings EREEZEFFNOT
during the Year were as follows:
Number of
Number of Number of Number of options Number of
options held options options cancelled/ options held
as at granted exercised lapsed as at
1 April during during during 31 March
Name of Directors Option type 2018 the Year the Year the Year 2019
RZB-N\F REEE REEE REEE  RZB-NF
BRE mA-BfiE Ritiz ki ¥4 F8/4%% ZA=t+-A
EEps Eobil BREHA k&S H BRE®E EREHE FRBREHA
(Note 1) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
(1) (F1) (F14) (F1) (F13) (F13)
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
AEHLE 2015A 8,000 - - - 8,000
2017A 34,000 - - - 34,000
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
AxELt 20154 3,000 - . - 3,000
2016A 30,000 - - - 30,000
2018A - 30,000 - - 30,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 2014A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
REZLE 2015A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
2016A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
Mr. Lau Man Kit 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
ENC S 2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2016A 3,000 - - - 3,000
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta  20714A 3,000 - - - 3,000
REBEHRT 2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2016A 3,000 - - - 3,000
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Number of

Number of Number of Number of options Number of

options held options options cancelled/ options held

as at granted exercised lapsed as at

1 April during during during 31 March

Name of Directors Option type 2018 the Year the Year the Year 2019

R-B-NF REEE REEE REEE  RIB-NF

BRE MA-BfE Rtz Tz HH/%%  ZA=1-B

EBps ] BREHA REHE BREZE BREHE HFEBREXA

[Note 1) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)

(Hit1) (T13) (T13) (T13) (T1) (F13)

Ms. Chai Mei Ping 2015A 3,000 - - - 3,000

EXTaT 201B6A 3,000 - - - 3,000

Mr. Tsai Chiu Yuk 2016A 3,000 - - - 3,000
ZHBEE

Total 5t 117,000 30,000 - (9,000) 138,000

Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are
disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition to 45,000,000 number of Shares which would
be allotted and issued upon the exercise in full of the
options offered to Mr. Chiau Sing Chi under the share
option scheme of the Company above, 220,588,235
number of Shares which would be allotted and issued
upon the exercise in full of the convertible bonds held by
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQ), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

a1 ERREEMNBREZHBREAY
KM 32K EE -

BRiR IR Bl AR R U A 3R T A 2 Bt
FEZBREEZETERS TRE LS
17 245,000,0000% i 7 4 - & £ 5ty 5t £
P AT R AR 55 1 2 T 17 0 A5 o T BC 35 K
#17220,588,235/ % 7 °

BREXWEEN R_ZE—-NEFE=ZA
=t+—B ARREEHESTTRAEH
ERAARREMBBEIE (EEREER
HI IR B EBEXV ED) 2 & fn - R D &
FH HEESEBRERE)IREE %}&Hﬂ
EEPIEXVBE7RBD FAME AR

Ko B 22 BT 2 AT AR #E Eﬁz/ﬁ’é(@%fﬁiﬁﬂi
HEH RSN B BIE S E (ERE
BMHZEZIKAE) KN REFESH LS
B &P EI521G BRI AZIGRT B2
EfER AR 3k (iil) iE%FGEMJ:m%ﬁH'J
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2019, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short in
the shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
who is expected, directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred

to therein:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

ERRREH A LR G 5 HRK
frziEa

MEFFAM R_E—NF=A=+—8 UT
AT (UFFARRESTIZRITHAR) KRS
&*aﬁﬁﬂxfﬁﬂtﬂ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁf’ﬁ%ﬁh]*Ei?ffma%&
BEIEMEXV EE2RID 2 EXABRMAR

Ko Bt 22 B 3 BB 2 4 s SO é'i@[u]i‘ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ
BEEAEAERIRA (BTFEEEAENRE
ABERLTEAEBREAKERRIZKRERE £
FE)EBEI10% A FEms 2 B IO B ok (i)
BIE B H N B E 50 5533615 8 58 82 10 52 A T
mERMzERSAR

RELXTROREBERD TR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Shareholders Shares held the Company
HARRAB BT

RREHE RO S A RAEBNBED L
Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1) (47:%1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1) (#1:E1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2) [ /1:£2) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2] [ #1:£2) 290,000,000 8.48%

Notes:

1. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly and their family are
the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE
(PTC) Limited (“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee
of the discretionary trust is the sole shareholder of Treasure
Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the sole shareholder of
Beglobal Investments Limited.
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2. Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 1,318,484,963
shares of the Company (representing approximately 38.53% of
the issued share capital of the Company) and indirectly holds
290,000,000 shares of the Company (representing
approximately 8.48% of the issued share capital of the Company)
through Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31
March 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible employees
and participants who have contributed to the Group, and will
expire on 14 August 2022. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to certain
employees of the Group and any distributor, contractor,
business partner, promoter, service provider, customer,
supplier, consultants, agents and advisers or any person who,
in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group in recognition of their contribution to
the Group.

As detailed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements
— Event after Reporting Period, the number and exercise
prices of share options were adjusted subsequent to 31 March
2019 due to share consolidation effective on 2 May 2019. As
at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares of
the Company available for issue under the Scheme is
85,538,466 shares, which represents approximately 10.0%
of the number of total issued shares of the Company, and the
Company had 71,500,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 8.4% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

2. RZT—-—NLF¥=H=+—H  Beglobal
Investments Limited B #4545 1,318,484,963
BARABBRD(EARABEBHETHRALY
38.53%) ' 17 3% i#8 Golden Treasure Global
Investment Limited f # #%F /5 290,000,000f%
RRRRG ((EARRAE 2 BITIRALB.48%) °

AR Bz HERT &

RER-_ZF-——"F/\AtTHBBBEZRER K
AARBEAAREELERMNEST A ERE
B2 EERMBERAETE([%TE]) E/E
R T —F N\ AtEAER - RIEZAE
ARBEFEARAKES TEEARMER[NS
R RERE EBBH BEA REHER-
EP #HER BwHAA RERERSIESEES
REERSERRALERAKEFLERZ
EMATELERE AXGRERRNEEED
By

WFa M BRRMEIS — MEHREFEMF
e mERRNEHR-_T—NFRAZBER
BEREHBELTEER-_ZE-AF=ZA=1+—
BEETHE - RAFRA S 7] iR EZT 2
1T 2 AR EI D 4 81 /585,538,466% - HE
RARB D ETRNBLEHLH10.0% ARFR
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As at 31 March 20183, the remaining life of the Scheme was
approximately 3 years and 5 months.

RZF-NF=ZA=1+—8B ZAERTFHY
R=ZFTHEA-

Number of
Number of Number of options Number of
Number of options options cancelled/ options
options granted exercised lapsed held as at
held as at during during during 31 March
Category Option type 1 April 2018 the Year the Year the Year 2019
R=FE-NF REFEFTH R-Z-NF
mA—B REFERHZ REFETEZ KBz =A=+—8
LYl BB R FEBREHE BREZE BREZE BREZRE MEBREHE
(000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(F1) (F1) (F1) (F1) (F1)
Directors & % 2014A 15,000 - - (3,000) 12,000
2015A 23,000 - - (3,000) 20,000
2016A 45,000 - - (3,000) 42,000
2017A 34,000 - - - 34,000
2018A - 30,000 - - 30,000
Employees & & 2018A - 60,000 - - 60,000
Advisors & [ 2014A 277,140 - - (3,340) 273,800
2015A 132,000 - - (128,000) 4,000
20158B 50,000 - - (50,000)
2016A 294,000 - - (288,000) 6,000
2017A 125,000 - - (125,000)
2018A - 90,000 - - 90,000
Total 4251 955,140 180,000 - (603,340) 571,800
Note: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in  ffaF : BRI T BRI 2 5418 W R A BT SRR

note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT PQOSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, none of the Directors or employees of the
Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any
such rights as at 31 March 2018.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Details of the Director's emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 20189 are
set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other connected transactions (including
continuing connected transactions) were entered into by the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

B B R

ARAFHHRR 2 ETZENELBRRESTER
NP NGB E B AR Sk ERE

BE_ZT-NF=ZR=T—HULFEZEEH
MEkAEEIUSERFMA T ZFBIARNEA
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AUDITORS

Cheng & Cheng Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Man Kit
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Wmom g F M OF OB A W A
4/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 52 to 173, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. \We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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e N SN

BEEEMERARADZ2BRE
(RESHBEEMA T HRAR)
BR

AZHBENE BRI BN ESRE179R L mEE
BEERAERAB ([EAR]) REMBAR (B
B ) 2EAaMBHREs MWEFAMBRREER
“E-NFZAZT-BIZEAUBIRRREK
HEEZALFEZEABEaR HKaHMEE
WHER GARZEHREGEARERER A
Kz a B mRME ERIEetBRME-

BARE SEMBERRRREBSIMNAE
(BEGEMAE]) MM 2B BV B REER
(BEMBHRELENDEERAFHRKR &
SER_ZE-NF=ZRA=+T—HZHEEHBKHK
ok BEREBEZALFEZEAMBESA
FiFaRang YeRBREBRAED ZKE
MEZSmE-

BRzER

BANEZTEDRREBGAMASRMZ
BEBRTER ([EAFEERDET-HME
ZERAT 2 EECERNRE ZEEN R BZL
B BHRRAAEZETHYFIEE— St -
REBZELSFTERSEMZEXGFTHERT
A (TsrR1)) - BB EKE YERIET
AETRMOEMEREE - HAIEE R
BGZERBRRERARMEEHARMNER
TR AR

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

X



25

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

REEXER

FAREZSFHEERERMANERHE RBYEAN
PR BBRRIBEGRRERZTH ZFE
HeAERMERERGAMBHRRMEARR
RETREEN R SHZFFREHERE

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming R °
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

How the matter was BRMPNERZ
Key Audit Matter addressed in our audit BRERSHE WA R ZEIE
Revenue from cinema investment KEFZBREREIEFET
and management business 2 e

Refer to Notes 5 and 6 in the
consolidated financial statements

We identified revenue
recognised from cinema
investment and management
business as a key audit matter
as revenue recognised is
guantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Revenue from box office takings
is recognised when the movie is
broadcasted and revenue from
advertising is recognised over
the contract terms. The
accounting policy for revenue
recognition is disclosed in Note
2(m) to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group
recognised revenue of
approximately HK$38 million
from cinema investment and
management business for the
year ended 31 March 2018,
which is disclosed in the
consolidated statement of profit
or loss and Notes 5 and B to
the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our procedures in relation to
revenue from cinema
investment and management
business included:

—Obtaining an
understanding of the
revenue process of the
cinema investment and
management business;

— Understanding the key
controls over the
recognition of revenue
from cinema investment
and management
business; and

— Performing test of details,
on sample basis, by
comparing the details and
amounts shown on the
underlying documentation,
including the journal
vouchers, box office
takings report and
contracts for advertising.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was
addressed in our audit

BEEXER

BEMNEX
WA EZEER

Impairment assessment of
gooawill and related property,
plant and equipment

Refer to Notes 15 and 16 in the
consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2019, the
carrying amounts of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$3950,000 and
HK$9,722,000 respectively are
attributable to the cinema
investment and management
business cash-generating units
which are assessed annually for
impairment.

Impairment tests require the
estimation of recoverable
amounts of the relevant group
of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amount of the group
of cash-generating units was
determined using value in use
calculations, based on
discounted future cash flows
forecast prepared by the
management of the Group as
detailed in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial
statements.

We identified the impairment
assessment as a key audit
matter because it involves a
significant degree of judgement
made by management which
includes:

— Preparing future cash flow
forecasts for the relevant
group of cash generating
units; and

— Selecting and applying
appropriate growth and
discount rates.

Our procedures in relation to
impairment of goodwill and
related property, plant and
equipment included:

Assessing the reliability of
management’s forecasts
by comparing previous
budgets to actual results;

Assessing the
reasonableness of the key
assumptions of the
forecasts based on our
knowledge of the industry
and evidence provided;

Reconciling input data to
supporting evidence
and checking the
mathematical accuracy
of the value in use
calculations; and

Performing sensitivity
analysis on the key inputs
for the management’s
forecast of the
impairment assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. \We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of e
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of e
the consoclidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance KREMEEIN RFEEREE BB E 2 EZE
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing AT EAEZERE BEEMES
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any %/ & Bl H A SR Hil 2 (T (0] | AGREA

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a HMTMAEEEBRESEH HERMEFEEH
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical BVt EEEEEEER WEMFEBREA

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate &¢&

BitWRee X ERFIBLIE A RIE

with them all relationships and other matters that may HMEMEIE - LARIEERER T 2 BEHEHE

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi

Practising Certificate number PO5540

Hong Kong, 24 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= A e
FeREx

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
" aF FET FET
Turnover EERE 56 38,048 47,877
Cost of sales and services HE MRS A (15,634) (19,324)
Gross profit EF 22,414 28,553
Other revenue and other net income H b U 2 K B A F WA 7 2,087 14,315
Selling and marketing expenses $HE K& HA X (6,551) (9,904)
Administrative expenses THHRZ (37,556) (40,337)
Share-based payments VAR (7 B EL 1 2 53R 29,32 (2,181) -
Share of result of an associate DIEEE N EEE (2) (3)
Finance costs RUE B AR 8 (3,835) (3,166)
Loss before taxation MrAR AT Es 18 g (25,624) (10,542)
Taxation Bi1E 12 (918) (846)
Loss for the year RFEEEE (26,542) (11,388)
Loss attributable to: FEREE

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE F =N (26,410) (10,542)
Non-controlling interests RS (132) (846)
(26,542) (11,388)
HK cents HK cents
Bl B
(Restated)
(ge&E5)

Loss per share BRER 14
Basic and diluted AR #E (3.09) (1.23)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FaRtElRaE

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Loss for the year AFEEEFR (26,542) (11,388)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  Hft 2 (&E) k#H
ltem that may be reclassified HEn s HEZBm HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINEBEFCERZHE
foreign operations
— Exchange differences arising — AFEEECERER
during the year (2,532) 3,471
— Release of exchange reserve — DEWB QR RARRE L F#E
upon disposal of subsidiaries - 515
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AFEEEMEE (BE) RS
for the year, net of tax MR IE (2,532) 3,386
Total comprehensive loss rEELHEEBEAHE
for the year (29,074) (7,402)
Total comprehensive loss BiE2EEEARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE/ RSN (27,700) (6,455)
Non-contralling interests SEVERRAE 2 (1,374) (947)
(29,074) (7,402)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAER

At 31 March 2019
RZBE-NF=ZA=1+—HIFFE

2019 2018
=E-NF —E-)N\F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ik FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz WE MEE 15 9,752 11,863
Goodwill EES 16 950 950
Interests in an associate REEE A R H RS 17 502 3
11,204 12,816
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables JE W BR K 18 969 1,277
Loan to an associate m—EEERARREER 17 33,808 -
Other receivables, deposits and Hb R IR 1R e Rk
prepayments TERT RIE 19 2,932 30,003
Payments to parties for procurement MR E R R MR N
for investment of cinema business Z I8 20 5,412 5,793
Cash and cash equivalents BeMhIBSEEY 22 60,926 95,995
104,047 133,068
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables JE 1~ BR K 23 909 1,500
Deposits received, other payables and YR E - HAth fE T FRIE K
accruals JETFI8 24 2,969 17,437
Contract liabilities aHAaRE 25 7,756 -
Tax payables FEH I8 1,064 1,336
12,698 20,273
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 91,349 112,795
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERARBAE
LIABILITIES 102,553 125,611
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SaMERARE

At 31 March 2019
RZBE-NF=ZA=1+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EkFBEE
Convertible bonds AMRES 26 24,618 20,783
NET ASSETS BEEFE 77,935 104,828
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR &
Share capital % AR 27 136,861 136,861
Reserves & (68,782) (43,263)
68,079 93,598
Non-controlling interests JEVERE 2R 33 9,856 11,230
TOTAL EQUITY DA 77,935 104,828

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 179 TFIE#HRESR2EEZF 1798 v K& BHMERE R
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Z—ZT—-AFAAAZtTHBEEE=SIERKE

directors on 24 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: TE WHTIEFRRESE:
Chow Man Ki Kelly Lau Man Kit
B X & 830 4%
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬁ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeERE

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

Equity Attributable
component Share to owners Non-
Share Share  Contributed of convertible options Exchange  Accumulated ofthe  controlling
capital premium surplus bonds reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
TRRES AR
BA REEE E4ES En¥s  BRERG EiiRfE ZiEE  REAERE  FERER Ed

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

At 31 March 2017 RZE-tE=7
=1-A 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 102,095 (4,025) (636,138) 100,053 12,195 112,248
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - (10,542) (10,542) (846) (11,388)
Other comprehensive (loss)/  AFEEM2E
income for the year (BB) ha
— Exchange differences —BEEEZER
arising on translation =2 - - - - - 3,572 - 3,572 (10m 3,471
— Release of exchange — HEMERR
reserve upon disposal RERER
of subsidiaries FfE - - - - - 515 - 515 - 515
Total comprehensive (loss)/  AFE2E(F8)/
income for the year Eatat] - - - - - 4,087 (10,542) (6,455) (947) (7,402)
Disposal of non-controlling REEENREAT
interests relating to HESRELE
subsidiaries disposal of FRRER
during the year - - - - - - - - (18) (18)
Lapse of share options BREEH - - - - (2410 - 2410 - - -
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\E=R
=t- 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 99,685 62 (644,270) 93,598 11,230 104,828
Loss for the year rEEBR - - - - - - (26,410) (26,410) (132) (26,542)
Other comprehensive (loss)/  AFEEM2ME
income for the year (B8)/ &
— Bxchange differences —BEEEZER
arising on translation E8 - - - - - (1,290) - (1,290) (1,242) (2,532)
Total comprehensive loss AEEREEREE
for the year - - - - - (1,290) (26,410 (27,700) (1,374) (29,074)
Equity settled share option EnEEERED
arrangement - - - - 2,181 - - 2,181 - 2,181
Lapse of share options BRELN - - = = (48,844) = 48,844 = S S
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A
=t-H 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 53,022 (1,228)  (621,836) 68,079 9,856 77,935
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHELEZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year KEEEE (26,542) (11,388)
Adjustments for: I BA T B IE:
Income tax expenses FRS iz 918 846
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss RIB R Z B E KA 3,835 3,166
Interest income B A (1,008) (391)
Depreciation e 2,440 8,160
Exchange gain HE 5, U a — (23]
Impairment of trade receivables JRE W BR TR (B 11 -
Other receivables written off S B h MR TE - 595
Share of profit or loss of an associate Pak(S): Al E=E: 2 3
Gain on disposal of subsidaries HE B A R E A 2 W - (2,146)
Property, plant and equipment written off MEH Y B KR 55 20
Share-based payments VAR 1 A B8 2 5% 2,181 -
Operating cash flows before working capital LEESEIAIZ
changes KEBHERE (18,108) (1,180)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables FEUBRFUR A (18h0) 213 (309)
Decrease in other receivables, deposits HMEWIE e Rk
and prepayments TR IR 2,308 308
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables FESBRFR CRlA ) /180 (494) 535
Decrease in deposits received, YIRS H bR &
other payables and accruals FEETFRIE R (5,851) (6,704)
Decrease in contract liabilities SHEERD (205) -
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS HEMARS (22,137) (7,329)
Tax paid B FIE (1,156) (1,049)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEfIACEESEEHE (23,293) (8,378)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2019 2018
—E-nE —TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it FER FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHz2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Payments for investment in an associate gt A B & A 7] 2 & MK — (6)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMRBEARZ
subsidiaries WEMAFHE - 500
Net cash repayment from parties for BEHER RS FE
procurement - 1,417
Gross deposit paid for investing projects &8 B K2 ik & A% — (48,422)
Refunds of deposit paid for investing KEEENEMZSERAR
projects 24,604 23,818
Purchase of property, plant and BEMEBERZE
equipment (1,135) (54)
Loan to an associate m—EEERARREER (33,357) -
Interests received EALE 516 391
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEBFMACEESTE
ACTIVITIES (9,372) (22,356)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY REEZS BB = -
DECREASE IN CASH RekBREEEMRD
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (32,665) (30,734)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUzHERESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 95,995 125,021
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — #IME [ & & &)~ 522 (2,404) 1,708
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZESRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 22 60,926 95,995

The Group’s only liabilities from financing activities are
convertible bonds, the changes of convertible bonds for the
year are shown in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flow as
cash flows from financing activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
202, 2/F., Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong
Kong. The Company has its primary listing on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) consider the Company's
ultimate holding company to be Beglobal Investments
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

a) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
GEM Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below. These
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention as
explained in the accounting policies set out in annual
report.
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ARBZWEEERET (ET]) T B
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AN A) 2w 9% S R AL 7L Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.0O. Box 2681 * Grand
Cayman KY1-1111 - Cayman Islands °
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HBIMEEA14-4245Fh LRk L28
20RE - ARBINEEBHARIMERA
AIGEMBEE — Lz - AR A ESH
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RNRBREZHESTEMRIIZEREERA
Beglobal Investments Limited °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 2(b).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

B BEEL R T RIEEBITES
MERSENZRE(B)

a)

RBLEXE (18)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 15
Amendments to

HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Insurance Contracts
Clarification to HKFRS 15

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
Standard recognised at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 15 (i.e. 1 April 2018). Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 April 2018 and has used the
practical expedient for all contract modifications that
occurred before the date of initial application, the
aggregate effect of all of the modifications was
reflected at the date of initial application. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

ANNUAL
2018/19

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources:

(i) Cinema investment and management;

(i)  Filmed entertainment new media exploitations
and licensing businesses.

Information about the Group’'s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in Note 2(m).

The application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact
on the timing of revenue recognition of the Group
and there is no impact of transition to HKFRS 15 on
accumulated losses at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2,

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 15 on deposits received, other
payables and accruals and contract liabilities at 1

B BEEL R T RIEEBITES
MERSENZRE(B)

b) RAFEBRHERNHTREBST
ERMBHEER(B)

BB R R E15RAE
B AR Y B BN RS
b (4)

TERBAR-_FT-N\FHNA—-—B8
BEEBRBHREEANFEISHEHE
Wiz & - B Ath FE 1 3R IB R AT BRR K2

April 2018. aHBRELTE-
Deposits
received,
other
payables and
accruals
glEs - Hith Contract
EARER liabilities
PEEHRRIE EHAE
note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt &t FHETT FHET
Closing balance at RZZE-N\F=H
31 March 2018 =+ —HmEREH 17,437 -
Effect arising from initial BRERB A GRS ER
application of HKFRS 15: FISREENTE
Reclassification BEFHHE (a) (8,523) 8,523
Opening balance at R-ZZE—-N\FMA—H
1 April 2018 HYHA ) 4 A 8,914 8,523
note: W&t -

(a) As at 1 April 2018, advances from customers of
HK$8,523,000 in respect of some contracts
previously included in deposits received, other
payables and accruals were reclassified to contract
liabilities.

() RZZE-NFEA—RB LA
B iR - H B A 50R K FEFT 5K
FEHBOANHERLBER
8,523,000 TtE EHMHEEEH
BfE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2,
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

B BEEL R T RIEEBITES
MERSENZRE(B)

b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
current year for each of the line items affected. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019 by the application of
HKFRS 15

b)

JA 25 F B 5 ) A R0 A9 R AT R AR B RT
ERMBHEER(B)

TERBARBEETHRELENSE
1SR HAEBRR _ZE-NF=A
=t BZHEEMBARNREK RAF
CHRARENERTEXVERE

TR -WMATEARAZEEZENA

E o

& & B 75 & BRI 155 5 R
ZE-NFZA=A1—HZHEEHH
MIRZ Z &

As reported

(after the Amounts
application of without
HKFRS 15) application of
BRER HKFRS 15
(EREB WRERE B
B &EER  Adjustments B & %A
E158 2 %) AR PI15%2EHE
note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ka3 FHET FHET FET
Current liabilities REEE
Deposits received, other Bl e EMER
payables and accruals R R EET TR (a) 2,969 7,756 10,725
Contracts liabilities EHaE (a) 7,756 (7,756) -
note: M &t -

(a) As a result of adoption of HKFRS 15, advances from
customers of HK$7,756,000 in respect of some
contracts previously included in deposits received,
accruals and other payables were reclassified to
contract liabilities. The above results would be
reversal without application of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2019

2.

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEREENZRE(E)

b) RAFEBRHERNHTREBST
BERMBHEER(E)

HRE-F-AFZA=+—HIFF
P BN RV L

As reported Amounts

(after the without

application of application of

HKFRS 15) HKFRS 15

TER I #% FE A

(EREB BRUB

BmEED  Adjustments HEER

E155 2 %) A BI15%2EE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT FHT
Cash flow from operating REREXBZRERE

activities

Decrease in deposits received, BYiLE  EbERFE

other payables and accruals NS IB R (5,851) (205) (6,056)

Decrease in contracts liabilities & 4 & &R 4 (205) 205 -

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities and 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets.

EREEHBERELAEIREMT
BYEHBENHEREI

RAFE AEECRBEBMBER
EREAFORERMITARAMEEY
B & EA RN ERER - BEY
BREENFER N EREERS
MEBNDBELFER)EREE
MmEMEEER ([(BHREEBE])
SIAFIRTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

ANNUAL
2018/19

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e.
applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as
at 1 April 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 April 2018, if any, is recognized in
the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 2(h).

The application of HKFRS 9 has no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and position on
1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of all
new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement
of financial position had to be restated. The following
table show the adjustments recognised for each
individual line item.

2. REBELRMIIRIEBITES
MEREENZRE(E)

b) RAFEBRHERNHTREBST
BERMBHEER(E)

P BB #TAT A2 4T 2 B B R
REZHE

MR LR AREE @ BRES M
iR B BRRKRATES - TR
TRELE(E RIIE B R o

31 March 1 April
2018 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 (Restated)
—E-N\E BEME —EB-N\F
=H=+—H HEEA mAE—H
(RER) #E15% (REF)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property plant and equipment #7% B 5 X & & 11,863 11,863
Goodwill EES 950 950
Interests in an associate R—EEE AR 3 3
12,816 12,816
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables fE LY BR 3R 1,277 1,277
Other receivables, deposits ~ H b EUGRIE - 2 & K&
and prepayments TERTRIE 30,003 30,003
Payments to parties for MIRE X EK
procurement for investment  [1& 77 X {2 5B
of cinema business 5,793 5,793
Cash and cash equivalent ReRECHFED 95,995 95,995
133,068 133,068
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of

2. REUBELRMIIRIEEBITER
MERSENZRE(B)

b) RAFEBRHERNHTREBST
ERMBHEER(B)

FEFE BB 3T E] BRI 21 B 1147 & B Bk

financial position arising from the application of all RERCHE(E)
new standards (continued)
31 March
2018 1 April 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 (Restated)
RZBE—-N\EF RZE-—N\E§
=A=+—HB BEUERE mA—H
(#RE®) R E155% (BE5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FHET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETRR X 1,500 1,500
Deposits received, ather IR E - HAb TR
payables and accruals 18 N FE 5T IE 17,437 (8,523) 8,914
Contract liabilities EHEE - 8,523 8,523
Tax payables eI 1,336 1,336
20,273 20,273
Net current assets RBEEFE 112,795 112,795
Total assets less current EEHERABER
liabilities 125,611 125,611
Non-current liability FRBEME
Convertible bonds Al E S 20,783 20,783
Net assets BEFE 104,828 104,828
Equity =
Share capital &N 136,861 136,861
Reserves & (43,263) (43,263)
Equity attributable to the ANTEE AELES
owners of Company 983,598 93,598
Non-controlling interests FEEAE 11,230 11,230
Total equity ERARE 104,828 104,828
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS

10 and HKAS 28

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business®?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS  Definition of Material®

1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement’
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint Ventures®
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

2. REBELEMIIRIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

c)

© 28 5 18 ) R A4 2 # 8] R ARME ]
BBMBREER

AEEYERFEBATERME
MR LR 2 # 7] RGBT BB W

352 e

ERUBHSEAS16R HE
ERMBREENFTR RRal?®

R (BRABRERE MEREELTE
ZEg)-ZEEQ%  Ei
BRMBREENENN XBOESR?

BT

ERHBHEE ARRERECENR
EtehibA BRH
ERHBHEES REERABENTR
F10FRERE AELEREES
B F285 2 B ERHA
FRESEARIRRER EAUMESR’

i EAIEBR 2 BRT

FRGHENE19% e BT B
5l ®i

EREENFBy  RBELARAELE
] A it 3o

ERMBREEN L “E-RFECR L

1l ERH BRI
R F R

! R-ZZE-NF—A—BH®ZR&HRA
ZEE R ER

2 R-Z-ZF-A Bz &MHR
ZFEHEEYR

3 MR-ZE-—F—A—H®kZR&MHRA
ZEE R ER

4 RFE A Hisk 2 & F6 2 F E HF]
E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

ANNUAL
2018/19

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for shortterm leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents operating lease payments as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 20189, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$24,815,000 (2018: HK$31,440,000]) as
disclosed in Note 30. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of approximately HK$374,000
(2018: HK$1,029,000) as rights under leases to
which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would
be considered as additional lease payments and
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease
payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

d)

ANNUAL
2018/19

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to
elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening accumulated losses without restating
comparative information.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it contrals an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

d)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

d)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associate used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise in the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 8/HKAS
39, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate, and
the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

f)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group of
cash-generating units, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a
group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvement

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income and interest expense are recognised
on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2(b)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b)

The Group estimates a loss allowances for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, loan to an associate and
payment to parties for procurement for investment
of cinema business). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are
assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b] (Continued)

U}

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b] (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b] (Continued)

U}

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued]

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has
an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b] (Continued)

(ii]

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b] (Continued)

(i)

(iv]

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than S0 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Wihite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over one
year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b] (Continued)

(iv]  White-off policy (Continued]

(v]

Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2(b] (Continued)

]

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped by aging
basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 April 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries and cash
and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses, (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below), unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost less provision for
impairment.

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been impacted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2.
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

B BEEL R T RIEEBITES
MERSENZRE(E

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 April 2018] (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)]

For all the Group’s financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 April 2018] (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)]

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and amounts
due from group companies, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables or amounts due from group
companies are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’'s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, other payables and accruals and amounts
due to subsidiaries are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bond

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that can
be converted to equity share capital at the option of
the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do
not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component
and an equity component.

An initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of
the fair value of the compound instrument over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in reserve of equity
component of convertible bonds until either the bond
is converted or redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bond (Continued)

If the bond is converted, the reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the
time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the bond is redeemed, the reserve is
released directly to accumulated losses.

Derecaognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

i)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Impairment of other assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries and an associate;
and

— films in progress and film rights.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

i)

Impairment of other assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’'s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

i)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Impairment of other assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Company is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash without notice and which
were within three months of maturity when acquired.
Cash and cash equivalents include investments and
advances denominated in foreign currencies provide
that they fulfill the above criteria.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents would also
include bank overdrafts and advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

k)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.

Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure to settle the obligation. Where it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1)

m)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals, if any, arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straightline basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b]))

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b)) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognized over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’'s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b)) (Continued)

The performance obligations of the Group for
contracts with customers are summarized as
follows:

(i) Cinema investment and management

The Group sells movies tickets, snacks and
accessories to customers both through its own
cinema and through internet sales.

Income from box office takings is recognised
when the movies have been broadcasted and
revenue from selling snacks and accessories is
recognised when control of goods have been
transferred to the customers. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the movies
tickets, snacks and accessories.

The advertising income represents the display
of some advertising materials in the area of the
cinema and the airtime right before the start of
a movie. The income of the former is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract terms with a fixed amount. For the
latter, the income is recognized over the
contract terms and the amount of revenue is
correlated to the box office takings of the movie
with the airtime.

For others, it mainly represents the services
charges for registration of membership and the
charges for the re-issuance of membership
cards for those lost cases. The income was
recognized when the membership cards were
issued to the members.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2018/19

B BEEL R T RIEEBITES
MERSENZRE(E

m)

W (48)

KEEF &M KeE (IREMZ2(b)E
RERZBEHREERE15)
(%)

AEEEFPAEHNELOS T
T

(il ZhEREREHE

AEEEBEBE R KB
HERMZEPHEERRE TR
N EcHfe

SEERAREZEREHER
HEZTRMEMH RSN E mIE
HEEETEFPKEBR AR
FREEXER TRNAHE-
BB R 5B -

BEERAERE R R EEZH
SRBERERRTRE TESEM
£ BT E AR A DRI
EreBRERELEREA -
Ri&E AR A O HRER

Wa e BEEZERNRE K
ATHEE

keBREXRBRATENZ
ER-WARRAE B #HTT
REFHERR -

~

Hib FRIEEME B AR
i3

m -t o

\
’



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2(b)) (Continued)

0}

(ii]

Cinema investment and management
(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised for the
prepayment made by the customers in the
membership cards. The balance will be
recognised as revenue at the point when
movies are broadcasted or when the customers
purchase snacks and accessories.

Filmed entertainment new media exploitations
and licensing businesses

Royalty income from the sub-licensing of
programme right and intellectual property right
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract period.

Income from investments in film production is
recognised when the films are released for
distribution.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and these
benefits can be measured reliably.

(i)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2. ﬁﬂgiﬁm&ﬁﬂgﬁfsﬂéiﬁ

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BMBREENZHE(E)
STANDARDS (Continued)
m) Revenue recognition (Continued) m) WEBER(E)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018) WamtgER (R=ZFE—NFWUA—H
(Continued) BI) (#&)
(i) Income in respect of management services is (i) EEREZUWARREMEIREE
recognised when the services are rendered. R
(i) Royalty income from the sub-licensing of (i) 2R EERET B RE N BE
programme right and intellectual property right ZHEFERAREGTEERE
is recognised on an accrual basis evenly over ZVERRR A P9 O FERR

the contract period.

(iv) Income from box office takings is recognised (iv)] ZEEWRARME RIEHREE
when the services have been rendered to the TR o
buyers.
(v) Income from investments in film production is (v) TEFRERERARE T
recognised when the films are released for L EREFRER o
distribution.
n) Government grants n) BUFHEER
Government grants are not recognised until there is EEEMREAEESETRAM
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply 5 1 P A5 16 DA R 16 & 15 B M AL 12 -
with the conditions attaching to them and that the T HAE 7 & T LAMERR o

grants will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

o)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case they are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the profit or loss because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

o)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

p) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes which
are defined contribution schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

q) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an

asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages, salaries, annual leaves
and sick leaves) after deducting any amount already

paid.

r) Share-based payment arrangement

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the

grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

r)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Share-based payment arrangement

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement
(Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

r)

s)

Share-based payment arrangement (Continued)
Share options granted to advisors

For share options granted to advisors in exchange
for services, they are measured at the fair value of
the services received. If the entity cannot estimate
reliably the fair value of the services received, the
entity shall measure their value, indirectly, by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair values of the services are
recognised as expenses immediately, unless the
services qualify for recognition as assets, with
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

t)

ANNUAL
2018/19

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognized initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’'s
interests in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

t)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company, that is HKS,
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

u) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the entity that is preparing its financial statements

(“reporting entity”).

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that

person:

() has control or joint control over the
reporting entity;

(i) has significant influence over the reporting

entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies:

() the entity and the reporting entity are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entities is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

u) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-empolyment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the reporting entity or an entity related to
the reporting entity. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the
reporting entity;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provide key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

v) Films in progress and film rights

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated at cost
incurred to date, less any identified impairment loss.
Cost is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Their costs are
amortised over the underlying licence period, with
reference to projected revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

Bz

—E-NF=ZA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortization
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
activities. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortization charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable and
amortization lives and therefore depreciation and
amortization expense in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

c)

Impairment of goodwill and related property,
plant and equipment

Determining whether goodwill and related property,
plant and equipment are impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables,
loan to an associate and payments to parties
for procurements for investment of cinema
business

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision matrix is based
on aging as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision rates are based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
as the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired, if any, are assessed for ECL
individually.

The Group assesses the ECL of loan to an associate,
other receivables and payments to parties for
procurement for investment of cinema business
individually based on past repayment record of the
counterparties.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of trade
receivables, other receivables, loan to an associate,
and payments to parties for procurement for
investment of cinema business are disclosed in
Notes 4(b)(iii), 17, 18, 19 and 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

4, &£MTHR

(a) ERTEEHA

AEBEEHEMEERBENR

the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at the FHRZREENT
end of the reporting period are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hHF —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised Z#EK A EN S REE E
cost
Trade receivables JE W BR 3R 969 -
Loan to an associate m—EBE AR EER 33,808 -
Financial assets included in other FEAHMEWRRIERIZS
receivables and deposits LEREE 1,423 -
Payments to parties for procurement B E R EB RS H
for investment of cinema business YAtz A 5,412 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRS 60,926 -
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ EFXNMEWRIE (B2HEHE ¢
and cash equivalents) LIReEED)
Trade receivables FEUAR 3K - 1,277
Financial assets included in other FFAE AW IBE KRS
receivables and deposits ZERMEE - 26,240
Payments to parties for procurement B & F PR EKHE
for investment of cinema business Atz 8 - 5,793
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS - 95,995
102,538 129,305
Financial liabilities tEAaE
Financial liabilities measured at REERAGTEZSRBE
amortised cost
Trade payables JE 1~ BR 3K 909 1,500
Financial liabilities included in other F A E At FE A 5B K AT
payables and accruals REZERmERE 2,969 8,914
Convertible bonds Al E 5 24,618 20,783
28,496 31,197
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For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

0}

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign currency.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales, purchases and
recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollars (‘USD")
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group currently does not expect any
significant movements in the exchange rate of
USD to HKD and it is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

U}

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior

&MTA(E)

(b) MBEEMREEENRBEE(E)

(i

SINE RSz (%)

AEERBERFUR—EMN
B SNE R B 2 R - IR

years and are considered to be effective. REBM-
The carrying amounts of RMB denominated REEHR ARKITERR
monetary assets at the end of the reporting BEEMEREMBENOT:
period are as follows:
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E—N\F
=ER=t-B =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
FTER FAET
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRE S 11,541 29,455
Other receivabes H th & R IE - 24,604
Loan to associate mEEE R AR EER 33,808 -
Payments to parties for procurement R EF R EBK RS
for investment of cinema business YAtz FIE 5,412 5,793
Sensitivity analysis SRR HT
The following table indicates the instantaneous TREFNBEHRAEEE
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and Fa & KX g E’J?I\I:E?“@JE/‘
accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign ZBMBEE2E (BRFAEEM

exchange rates to which the group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong Dollar and the United
States Dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States Dollar against other currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. £MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)
(Continued)
(il Foreign currency risk (Continued) () SMERE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) VST ()
2019 2018
—B-NEF —B-N\F

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Loss after  (decrease) Loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated

rates losses rates losses

EXLA/ BEABER EXL#/ BRESEAR
(TH) RitBR (T &) RitBR

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR
Renminbi ARE 5% 2,119 5% (2,499)
(5%) (2,119) (5%) 2,499
Results of the analysis as presented in the FRAESOMERERZTIE
above table represent an aggregation of the MM AEEINEEEFTED
instantaneous effects on each of the group EEEEERVEEELER
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in RBEMRBITERLBRAE
the respective functional currencies, translated TLHER G BB Z o
into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the B E o 1T R AR JINEE P& R & &)
change in foreign exchange rates had been EERAREFAEEREER
applied to re-measure those financial R HR R T B O E LB A S
instruments held by the Group which expose TE- DT BRIEBREFINE
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of BHBEHREABAEEZINNER
the reporting period. The analysis excludes FEANZRE - SR _T
differences that would result from the — N\FHEREEEET-

translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’'s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
loan to an associate rates.

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk due to its bank deposits, carrying
interest at variable rates which is disclosed in
Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements and fair value interest rate risk due
to its loan to an associate and convertible
bonds carrying interest at fixed rates which are
disclosed in Notes 17 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy and does not use any
derivative instruments to reduce its economic
exposure to the changes in interest rates.

As 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the
Group’s convertible bonds and loan to an
associate bore an imputed interest at fixed rate
and the bank deposits are carrying minimal
interest rates. Management considers the
exposure to the changes in market interest
rate should not be materially enough to cause
adverse financial effect on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

i} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would fail
to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from the ordinary

course of its operations.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits, loan to an associate and
payments to parties for procurement for
investment of cinema business. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not

obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

i} Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect
of trade and other receivables, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application
of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred loss model) on
trade balances individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to
have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for
all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and ECL. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

lii]  Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables that
are individually significant and credit impaired
have been separately assessed for impairment.
The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the
background and reputation of the customers,
historical settlement records and past
experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received
from debtors in relation to cinema investment
and management operation. The Group's trade
receivables arise from revenue of these
business. In view of the history of business
dealings with the debtors and the sound
collection history of the receivables due from
them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding receivable balance due from these
debtors saved for the debtor related to the
impaired trade receivable disclosed below.
Management makes periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the debtors. The
directors consider the Group’s credit risk of
these receivables to be low except for the
impaired trade receivable disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

i} Credit risk (Continued)

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 March 20189, the balance
of loss allowance in respect of these individually
assessed receivables was HK$11,000 (2018:
Nil).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and the loss allowance
in respect of the individually assessed
receivables as at 31 March 2019 and 2018:

4.

&MTA(E)

BHEAREEENRBE(E)

(b)

(i)

1B (&)

BREMFEVBRENT P
oK 101 i M 7 7 B K ek ] ) B
HRIEE IR E BB R EL
BRI - -R_T—NF=H
=+ — A @5 ¥4 &9 & UK
TENER R E AR S11,0008
TT(ZF—N\F:FT)o

FREIR-F-NER-F
—N=A=t—BASIFEE
U O ) B AL TR TR

—+ .
REER -

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Gross carrying amount FREAE 11 -
Loss allowance EBEEE (11) -
Net carrying amount FREDFE - -

The credit quality of loan to an associate, other
receivables and payments to parties for
procurement for investment of cinema business
has been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default
rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion
that the credit risk of these debtors is low due
to the sound collection history of the receivables
due from them. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of these debtors is assessed to be close
to zero and no provision was made as of 31
March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4., €MTIH(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERBREEBMNREEK(E)
(Continued)
(i}  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEEE (&)
The following tables show the movement in TRIFRIEECTESD R
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade JEWER R Z K ATEHAZ E K518
receivables under the simplified approach: ZEE):

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
KATEH KATEH
FEEE FEEER
(EEERE) (FERE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2018 R-ZZE—-NFWMA—H
- As restated — R85 - - -
Impairment losses CEHERBEBR
recognised - 11 11
As at 31 March HRoZEB—RE
2019 =BA=+—H - 11 11
Concentration risk £ E B
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced ARENEERRARIERES
mainly by the individual characteristics of each BEFRABEEHAZENGEHRTE
customer and sundry debtor rather than the mAREEREEESALEME
industry or country in which the customers and TRIER Al EXEREETA
sundry debtors operate and therefore BREENANEEHER TP HEAM
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily BEHAREEARRBELE - R-F
arise when the Group has significant exposure —NAF=ZRA=+—H8 BURKEFRRE
to individual customers or sundry debtors. As Z250% (=T —\F:74%) 5K A
at 31 March 2019, 50% (2018: 74%) of the AREZERESHEHA - HiEK
total trade receivables was due from the R M AZ & A e 1R — [ B & R R R
Group’s largest trade debtor. 96% (2018: HEFBE296% (ZFT— )\ F:
94%) of the total other receivables and 94% ) Jh e UL A S M H) — Rl B 8 )
deposits and loan to an associate was due from RE-BRASHAREFRERZE
an associate of the Group. The concentrations Rz EESTRE F2HME20 -

of the credit risk related to payments to parties
for procurement for investment of cinema
business can be referred to Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iv]  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of trade payables, other
payables and accruals and also in respect of its
cash flow management. The Group’s objective
is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid
assets and committed lines of funding to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

ANNUAL REPORT ik

2018/19

4.

&MTA(E)

(b)

BHEAREEENRBE(E)

(iv]

RBEZ AR

nBEERRTER AR EE
FRTEESREBEEMEBREE
MR MxEFeMBEARS
BRNBETHZ—EERMEE
KB - NREE LB RN IR
H Al A R N B AT B A E b
nBEZRR TREBRSR
EEEBRABDETRAR KE
BOESEREREENRBE
EKFRBREEAEEFEERE
NENESMERINABES

Foko

AEEENEEARBTAEA
HeglE BRReAKRZE
HRENEBEERIARN AR
Bed R HEREBERELET
FEE R KB BIZA KRG
ExefE-AEE—EBETEH
ERHEERRBESHE R
UERENMEEBERE A
REEBRRREREBEEES
ZEEES BBXTEcmB
BAGRREHTMES BN
HEEHRSHESFEK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

4. ®MTAGE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)
(Continued)
(iv)] Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] REEDREE (&)
The liquidity policies have been followed by the AEBEEBEBFUR—BEn
Group since prior years and are considered to ARBERE WRBEER
be effective in managing liquidity risks. HEBREBE SRR -
The following table details the remaining TERARBREARRNEEIET
contractual maturities at the end of the FeRBE(REHFUREI
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative ERBFHE BREREHMNE
financial liabilities, which are based on FOFEAE (ARBEHRE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including HzRZE)AEZEMNFE)Z
interest payments computed using contractual Fler & 2 B A AR A A]
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current WESER ZFRARZFE:
at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the company can be required to
pay:
2019
ZB-NF
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Effective undiscounted ~ 1vyearor  lessthan  less than
interest Carrying  cash flow on demand 2 years 5years  More than
rate amount EHFEEE  -FRF SR-FE SRWEE 5 years
BRA= REE ReRELE EZEX  SREE  OREFE  SREE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'O00
TER TER THET TERL TERT TET
Trade payables ERER - 909 909 909 - - -
Financial liabilities included st AE M ERFIE R
in other payables [ EZ 2 RER
and accruals - 2,969 2,969 2,969 - - -
Convertible bonds mHRES 16.73 24,618 30,000 - 30,000 - -
28,496 33,878 3,878 30,000 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. £MTIA(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)
(Continued)
(iv)] Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] REEDREE (&)
2018
B0\
Total More than ~ Mare than
contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but
Effective undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
interest Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than

rate amount  AAVFEER  —FR% SR-FE  SRREFE 5 years
ik BHE ReNSLE BEX  LRWE JSREF SRDF
%  HKFOOD  HKEOOO  HK$OOO  HK$OOO  HKS0OO  HK$OOO
TER TEn TEn TER TEn TER

Trade payables ERER - 1,500 1,500 1,500 - - -
Financial liabilities included ~ 5F A £ {th Ef 5078 |2
in other payables s HEC AR
and accruals - 8,914 8,914 8,914 - - -
Convertible bonds HRES 16.73 20,783 30,000 - - 30,000 -
31,197 40,414 10,414 - 30,000 -
(c) Fair values (c) ¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial REBERBERANE2EHMITA
instruments carried at amortised cost are not CEEERER-_ZE-NLEFER=F
materially different from their fair values as at 31 —NFZA=Z=+—RAZAFELE
March 2019 and 2018. ERER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

Bz

5.

—E-NF=ZA=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group's
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management — cinema
investment and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEEHGE)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, TRIEAZWMELED BT AKE 2 I
results, assets and liabilities by reportable and operating moEE AEERAEGE-
segment.
Year ended 31 March 2019 Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-Z-NE=A=t-HLEE BE_Z-\E=A=+-AIEE
Filmed Filmed
entertainment entertainment
Cinema new media Cinema new media
investment  exploitations investment  exploitations
and  and licensing and  and licensing
management  businesses Total  management businesses Total
BEYRE EYRE
¥R HREMER PR HERRER

REREE  HiHERE it RERER  NITEEHR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Segment Revenue 7 ElE 38,048 - 38,048 46,929 948 47,877
Segment Results AHEE

Reportable segment result 2RI HEE 217 (1,003) (786) (2,036) 4,579 2,543
Unallocated corporate income RABREERA 1,405 9,956
Unallocated corporate expenses FAECERT (20,227) (19,875)
Share-based payments WRG BER 2457 (2,181) -
Finance costs BERE (3,835) (3,168)
Loss before taxation BRAEE (25,624) (10,542)
Segment Assets AHE

Reportable segment assets ERNHEE 47,126 20,002 67,128 52,204 33,665 85,869
Interests in an associate NEE D RIMES 502 3
Loan to an associate ABERRREER 33,808 -
Unallocated corporate assets ROMBEEE 13,813 60,012
Consalidated total assets GREENE 115,251 145,884
Segment Liabilities AHER

Reportable segment; liabilties EEE TR -1 9,851 - 9,851 11,454 3,244 14,698
Tax payables ERTE 1,064 1,336
Convertible bonds R ES 24,618 20,783
Unallocated corporate liabilities APRCEEE 1,783 4,239
Consalidated total liabilties GRBERE 37,316 41,056
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEWEHE)

For the purposes of monitoring segment information and MERSHEHN RS HESEERNE :
allocating resources between segment:

—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments ather — MMBEESREFZ2MmH I MR —
than interests in an associate, loan to an associate S AR R M — S QA
and unallocated corporate assets. REERERDBEEEEERIN-

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — MBEREESREFEZ®mH I - MEEN
other than tax payables, convertible bonds and WIE A MRESRRSEECEER
unallocated corporate liabilities. BRANe

Other segment information: Hitt 5 ZEHR -

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-NF=A=t-HLFE
Filmed
entertainment
Cinema new media
investment  exploitations
and and licensing Corporate
management businesses level Total
FRE
P MREERR
REREE  BIEER tEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TET

Additions to non-current assets ERBDEERE 1,135 - - 1,135

Interest income MEKA 285 195 528 1,008

Depreciation e 2,341 - 99 2,440

Impairment of trade receivable FEWRFORE 11 - - 11

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEEH(E)
Other segment information: (Continued) HttoH&ER : (8)

Year ended 31 March 2018
B2 \FZA=+-HILtFE

Filmed
entertainment
Cinema new media
investment  exploitations
and  and licensing Corporate
management businesses level Total

AT
BYRE.

Fh HEBRER

RERER  BIERR tXER mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THET FET
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE 54 - - 54
Interest income MEWA 297 49 45 391
Depreciation e 7,761 99 300 8,160
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBARIEE 2 Wa - 2,146 - 2,146
Revenue from major products and services: REFEEMRBRB2ZWE :
The Group’s revenue from its major products and services AEBREFEERMBRB 2 WROT
were as follows:
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Cinema business ASTE T 38,048 46,929
Production and distribution of film rights, T & iRt 2 1E M 37T - EFIHE K&
royalty and licensing income FAFRERA - 948
38,048 47,877
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information:

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location of the customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods or services. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based
on the physical location of assets in the case of property,
plant and equipment, and the location of the operation to
which they are allocated in the case of goodwill and
interests in an associate. Revenue from external
customers and information about non-current assets by
geographical location are detailed below:

SEEH (E)
WEEH

AEBMEBREERFEARLME ([H
BREEB TR ZMBUEREFM
B D - T E m SRS R < IER

BEZHMBUE WX BEEEEM
5O NREEBERMWAE D MpLEE LR

—HEEEARMNERME  AEREBEES
MBS D RAINEEP 2 Wam KR
NESN ZIERDEEEHFINT :

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENBEF 2l REFRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\E “E-n% —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL THET TET
Hong Kong B - - 532 132
PRC F 38,048 47,019 10,672 12,684
Others it - 858 - -
38,048 47,877 11,204 12,816
REFEEF z2WE ¢

Revenue from major customers:

There are no major customers contributing over 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: Nil).

BE _T-NF=A=+—HILFE #
BEXIZEFPERMASEREHEBI0% (=
T—N\F:E)-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

6. TURNOVER

An analysis of Group’s turnover for the year from

6. EXRHE

RAEE AEEEEXBZEREIN

operations, is as follows: LUNNE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Revenue from cinema business PEEATE Sl 6 38,048 46,929
Production and distribution of film rights & K 317 & & i & = 838
Royalty and licensing income EW I INESEI TN - 90
38,048 47,877

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

HUHEHREEF &AW

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_ZF-AF=A=+t-HLEE

Cinema
business
TREK
HK$000
FHET

Revenue from cinema business b W AR
— Sales of movie tickets — at a point in time — HEEXE—RHEE 31,225
— Sales of snacks - at a point in time — HETR—KHEE 4,238
— Advertising income - over time — BEWA—BERE 1,655
— Others (note] - at a point in time — Efb (faF) —B5E 2L 930
Total #at 38,048

note: It mainly represents the services charges for registration of
membership and the charges for the re-issuance of

membership cards for those lost cases.

Contracts for advertising services are typically have a 1

ffet: EEXBREAMEENORBERNERS
BEREBRATHENEREM-

BERBAN—MEITA—E=FHTTR

year to 3 years non-cancellable term in which the Group BHER HRAREEUNERERANEES

bills a fixed percentage on the box office takings. The
Group elected to apply the practical expedient by
recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group has
right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the

DHRR AEEERZRMELER  UA
SHEEHAZZENSEER RS -
MBREEEISEAFTNTREIEE
BRARERANNZXHE-

transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts

is not disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

6. TURNOVER (Continued) 6. EEHTGE)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BUHEHRAEFENWE (B)
customers (Continued)

The customer loyalty points have no expiration and can be BERFBHERDW ARG AIBRRER
redeemed anytime at customers’ discretion. The FOERETH B AEEEREEHAN
management of the Group expected that the remaining ZE-NF=ZA=T—HHHKREHNET
performance obligation as at 31 March 2019 will be BREFRER-EMFAEEERBRIKA -
materially recognized as income within one to two years BEFBENMNEE RRBERGE M EHREMN
after the year end. The prepaid amount in membership FI2BA#EFE

card by the customers as disclosed in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 7. HS K HEMBUA
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Interest income F B U A 1,008 391
Exchange gain (Rl - 2,599
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34  HEWE QG EE 2 Wz
to the consolidated financial statements] (44 815 # &M 7134) = 2,146
Government grants (note 1) AT #ERE (M aET) 157 2,082
Other payables written off o B At JE 5 RRO0R — 585
Others (note 2) Hb (KaF2) 922 6,512
2,087 14,315
notes: et -
1. The government grants represent the subsidies received by 1. BREMEREERNTEEETRE
the Group from the government for the operation of BUTRMEER - BImAEZE MM 2 RE
cinemas in PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or B AR S R AT -

contingencies relating to these grants.

2. During 31 March 2018, included in the amount were an 2. MRIZE-NF=ZA=+—HBRBEK
income from termination of PRC cinema investment IFF BRI E & 49,2 A 42,691,000
contracts of approximately HK$2,691,000 and an over BTREBE_T—+tF=A=+—HIE
provision of a consultancy fee of approximately FEFHEZ FM B HEERE3,819,000
HK$3,819,000 provided during the year ended 31 March BT e
2017.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEFAE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ER 2 HEE R 3,835 3,166
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. KMAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEREIERBEHR (5t A) T &IE:
(crediting):
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN N & 800 750
Direct expenses of cinema business T EBEERX 15,634 19,324
Depreciation e 2,440 8,160
Property, plant and equipment written off #8547 % « B &= K& & 55 20
Exchange loss (o= 3,913 -
Impairment of trade receivables JE W BR OB B 11 -
Other receivables written off (note) il S8 B A HE W SR IE (M RE) — 285
Operating lease rental in respect of MAMEZKERNES
rented premises 5,179 5,762
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 TR
remuneration) (RIEEEME)
— Salaries and allowances — e RERM 13,136 14,141
— Equity settled share-based payments — RREEURO REMZ
N 1,848 -
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIRETBIE 2,009 2,123
Equity settled share-based payments EREREREE RS A
paid to advisors B2 333 -
note: Bz
In view of the long outstanding period of the other receivables $E A EL fih fE W 30 TE 49595,0008 TR B S K
amounted to approximately HK$595,000, the management of REBETEED I mOmkOoge YRR
the Group has assessed the recoverability of the balance and AERA] RARRWKE - ZHREEREE T —/\
believes that it will not be received in the foreseeable future. The FZA=+—HILFEME-

amount was written off during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the Company's
directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018

were as follows:

10. ESFM&

BHE_Z—NEFr_F—\F=ZA=+—
BEFEENSENARTEE 2w
T

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-_Z-—NE=A=1+—HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Share
Directors’ and other based
fee benefits payments Total
Eac =431 DN &)
EE=e REHMEN EREZAR ECE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET F&T
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi JB £ Bt 55 A& - = = =
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly Al 2+ 120 35 576 731
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (note) PRE & ST (KaE) 87 = = 87
Mr. Lau Man Kit RIS & 120 - - 120
Non-executive Director FHHITEFE
Mprs. Chin Chow Chung Hang
Roberta PREBEHT 20 & 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive BIIEHTEF
Directors
Ms. Choi Mei Ping BEFT L 120 - - 120
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk EENB A 120 - - 120
Mr. Ong King Keung TR 5 A 120 - - 120
807 35 576 1,418

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. EF#& (&)

Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_Z—-N\E=ZA=1+—HILFE

Salaries,
allowances Share
Directors’  and other based
fee benefits  payments Total
e ER AR 9 7
EE20E RHMEN ERZMRK et

HK$'000O HK$0O0O HKFOOO  HKS00O0
THET THET THET THET

Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi JB 2 Bt e & - - - -
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly JE 3 il 2 £ 120 35 - 155
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee PREELE 180 - - 180
Mr. Lau Man Kit BB A 120 19 - 139
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang  BREFEH 22+

Roberta 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive BUIHHITEF

Directors
Ms. Choi Mei Ping BEFRt 120 - - 120
Mr. Tsai Chiu Yuk e LA 120 - - 120
Mr. Ong King Keung TR LS 120 - - 120

900 54 - 954

note: Resigned on 24 September 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

11.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11.

Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest
emoluments, one of them (2018: none) is the director of
the Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The
emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2018: five),
are as follows:

ERFAR

AEELERSHFMARES —R(ZF
—NEFEB)ARFEF HFHMERNLEX
BE- SR TR (ZE—-\F: AH)AEB
ZEBIT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 2,572 2,534
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 54 90
2,626 2,624

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) by emolument
range is as follows:

hERESFMAR (BREZLREMWESR)
ZEHBIREMBE Z AT

Number of employees

EEAR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1,000,000% T AN 5 5

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018, no directors waived any emoluments.

REBEEZZE—NLEFERZZZ—-NFE=A
—T+—HLEFERN AEETERAEE
SEHEWAE (BREES)INEM EAK
EMBEAREE - BESIERBR 2 FE-
N REBEEZZE—NLFRZFE—N\F=
A=+ BLFEAN BESEERELH
i o

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF
12. TAXATION 12. IRIA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
The taxation charge recognised REEEABER MBS L BE
in profit or loss comprises:
Current tax BVEARR T8
The PRC H 744 1,574
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BEFERETR
(HEEER®E) 174 (728)
918 846

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
there is no assessable profits for the current year (2018:
Nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.
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RZZE—-N\F=ZA=-+—R0 BFEILEE
BB CCE—EFHB (BF]) (F79) 1K
BlEZ) (MEHIEZR]) 3| AFIS MR
FleZEHERER-_TE—N\F=ZA=-F+N
Z‘“é%ﬁﬁiﬁdﬂi WA ZH FIE - RIEF
EHmMAEHN AEREEESES
2,000,000/% 7t i@ Fl A 7 & £8.25% ' i
#3iB2,000,0008 7T & % F % & &
16.5% - T HAFBHMAHHERZEE
N S AL B 151 6. 5% B 5T — TH R E

ARAREERAL BIHES MRS &P
EMEBEHEAMBHHRRME T KM E
FEREAERFENNI16.5%HERE
LS TR

PP N R I 4 PR AR s A DRt 3 S A
RABMNEGHEG  (ZF—N\F E) -

BE_Z-NEFE-_T-NF=ZA=1—
BIEFE - BB AR AR X25%#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

Bz

—E-NF=ZA=+—HIFE

12. TAXATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the tax authority
in the PRC has grant concessionary tax rates to some of
the PRC subsidiaries of the Company because the size
and assessable profits of those subsidiaries have fulfilled
the condition as small and micro corporations defined by

the relevant tax authority.

12. RIB (&)

BE_T-NF=ZA=+—BHLEE ®H
B R BRFI R AN 2 R) 35 T+ o BT 8 & Al 3%
HEEVE AAZENERBNHRER
ERTG N EERARBRBEPFIEEN
R G

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEMIBEEESBRERT ZBRTAE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or BEERMAT
loss as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Loss before taxation M Fi R &5 1R (25,624) (10,542)
Tax at the respective applicable tax rate REMERBEAE ZHIEA (4,167) (1,411)
Income not subject to taxation TEFB A (457) (4,600])
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose Ik ﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ‘kﬁﬁkz%ﬁﬁ 4,130 7,169
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERTBEEEIMETE 1,535 948
Tax effect of prior year’s tax loss utilised RAFREERBEFEHIEEE
in this year 2R = (586)
Tax effect of temporary difference not AEREREZBLUBTE
recognised 15 64
Effect of tax exemptions granted to PRC ~ E FHEWE R RS E
subsidiaries ob2 (312) -
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BAFERETNR/ (BERE) 174 (728)
Taxation charged for the year NEEMIBZ W 918 846

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

HE—

12.

13.

E-NFZA=+—HIFFE

TAXATION (Continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising in the PRC and Hong Kong of
approximately HK$12,840,000 (2018: HK$12,090,000)
and approximately HK$53,505,000 (2018:
HK$48,352,000) respectively available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. Under current tax
regulation, tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for five years from the year in which the
respective loss arose while the tax losses arising in Hong
Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$34,523,000
(2018: HK$34,497,000). Withholding tax resulting from
the distribution of such profits would amount
approximately to HK$3,453,000 (2018: HK$3,450,000)
if they are distributed to holding companies/shareholders
outside of PRC. However, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in this respect as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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12.

13.

RIA (&)
REREEPIEAE

RBEEHR AKREEREFTFELEELZ
RE)B A EE D B 412,840,000/
7 (ZZF—)\%:12,090,000/% T) &
#153,505,0008 T (== — )\ % :
48,352,000/ 7T ) Al f# fA 15 85 R 0%
A o Bl 0 A D TROBI R R0 A SRR - #RE
ABAMBEEBERELERIAEE -RIE
BOIBREAG REFEZHBEBREAR
FRBERELFERNDAFAE MRS
BB AR BRI ER s o

RERELEREARE

RMmERAR B REZKRDIKEN
#7%34,529,0008 T (=T — )\ F:
34,497,000/ 7T ) - fis 1% L A B AN 2
ERAR/RREL DK A2 KA B &
MEEZ BB L R3,453,0008 7T (=
T — )\ % : 3,450,000 7T) < A1 - B
RRAREHZERNB AR ZREBKAR
RABETENA BB KD IKZ S &N
I B FE IR AE R IR RS o

R

EXVAERRNBE_ZT-NF=H
=t+t—BLEFEZEARE (ZT-N\F:
&) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

14. LOSS PER SHARE

14. BEREE

Basic and diluted loss per share BREAREBEER
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-N\F
HK cents HK cents
B gl
(Restated)
(xe&Ey)
Total basic and diluted loss per share FREAR M EEIEAE (3.09) (1.23)

The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
are as follows:

AR EEREARLRBEER s BELE
BRI R BT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR RIHEA A B ANFE E1E
of the Company (26,410) (10,542)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
(Restated)
(&E5)
Weighted average number of ordinary A EERERNREFFEZ
shares for the purpose of basic and TR TR E
diluted loss per share 855,384,669 855,384,669

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic loss per share have been
retrospectively adjusted to reflect the share consolidation
with effect from 2 May 2019.

The incremental shares from assumed exercise of share
options granted by the Company and conversion of the
Company's outstanding convertible bonds are excluded in
calculating the diluted loss per share during the year
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 because they are
antidilutive in calculating the diluted loss per share.

SETEEREREIRZ BB INEFH K
FEEPRAE UARKE-FT—NAFAHHA
“HEEMOBD A b e

EAEEE_FT-NER-_T-N\F=H
=+ RBUEFESRESERFCHMEGR
RARB OB E 2 BREETERANAF
T R AT (8 2 A 3R B 55 0 38 #2382 B
 RASENAEERBEIERARE
SEE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. X BERKE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
improvement machinery ~ Computers equipment vehicles Total
BE B
NxEE  HERESE Bl HERRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL
Cost RS
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tEEA-A 25,025 19,955 615 5,858 1,797 53,250
Additions NE - - - 54 - 54
Written off iz - (27) - (13) - (42)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (274) - - (274)
Currency realignment EREEE S 2,672 2,154 37 832 - 5,495
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-NF=A=1-H
1 April 2018 kZE-\5NA—-H 27,697 22,082 378 6,529 1,797 58,483
Additions hE 589 18 - 528 - 1,135
Written off it = (100) - (471) - (571)
Currency realignment ERA% (1,789) (1,454) (25) (432) - (3,700)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=-A=+-A 26,497 20,546 353 6,154 1,797 55,347
Accumulated depreciation RiE
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tEEA-A 20,435 7,648 595 4,578 1,497 34,753
Charge for the year FEXA 4,666 2,087 2 1,105 300 8,160
Written off W - 11 - (X)) - 22)
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries &} B2 755 £ 5 - - (274) - - (274)
Currency realignment EREEE S 2,485 948 35 557 - 4,003
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\F=A=1-H
1 April 2018 kZF-\5NA—H 27,566 10,670 358 6,229 1,797 46,620
Charge for the year FEXH 175 2,068 1 196 - 2,440
Written off Wi - (50) = (466) = (516)
Currency realignment EHA% (1,808) (710) (24) (409) - (2,949)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE-A=+-A 25,935 11,978 335 5,550 1,797 45,595
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE-A=+-H 562 8,568 18 604 - 9,752
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=+-A 131 11,412 20 300 - 11,863
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

16. GOODWILL 16. &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Cost R
At the beginning of the year F7) 12,423 20,718
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B R A - (8,295)
At the end of the year FR 12,423 12,423
Accumulated impairment losses iR EEE
At the beginning of the year F 4 (11,473) (19,768)
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries k=i oy =N - 8,295
At the end of the year FR (11,473) (11,473)
Carrying amount FREE
At the end of the year FR 950 950

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) was allocated to cash-generating units

e REE (KM RARERBE) 2D
REReELEM ARWOT:

as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FTER FHET
Cinema business — Cinema Group FRER — EXREE 950 950

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Raxco
Assets Corp. (“Raxco”) during the year ended 31 March
2011, which was engaged in new media exploitations
business. For Raxco, the management considers that it is
difficult to set a concrete time-line for the development in
this segment, and future revenue cannot be reliably
projected, full impairment of the goodwill was made in the

year ended 31 March 2014.

HE-_ZTE——F=ZA=+—HILFE
DHEEABWHBREMEBAEER
Raxco Assets Corp. ([Raxco]) ° gt
RaxcolM s  BEERAHURBERZS
o AR R B 6] S8 B k2R
We RBE—_T-—HF=A=+—H
IFFEREAEBIEL 2 EURE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Bingo
Cinema (Shanghai] Company Limited (“Shanghai Bingo”)
together with its subsidiaries (“Cinema Group”) during the
year ended 31 March 2013, which was engaged in
cinema business.

During the year, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of goodwill associated with Cinema Group by
reference to value-in-use. The calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Company covering a five-year period.
For the Cinema Group, management believes that the
recoverable amount would exceed its carrying amount as
at 31 March 2019 and therefore, no impairment is
necessary.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

B (&)

BE_Z—=F=A=+—HILFE 6
NTHEBELARBRESREBZULSE
Fh( L8 BRAR(ILLE LB RAE
MBAR ([EXRER]) -

REAFERN AEBRK2EEXREBEERT
HREZREEAR  HE ZATKRESHE-
SIREF BB ERE AR R A E SR B AR
ERRFEHHzMBRBEE RS RER
A-REXEEMS EEERRA KD
CHEEBBENR -_T-—AE=A=+—-H
ZHEEE RLERELE -

EREEEMEAZEZR/E:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

Growth rate R R 2% - 4% 3%
Discount rate HhIR = 15% 15%

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and
management’'s expectations for the market development.

Cash flows beyond the 5-year period (2018: 5-year) are
extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate (2018: 2%).
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. WEEATIHES

2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET

Unlisted shares ¥k EH R4
Share of net assets DIEFEE (5) (3)
Due from an associate (note b) i A NCIE SR o)) 507 5]
502 3
Loan to an associate (note c) m—EEBEANTREER (Mitc) 33,808 -

The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s TREAREBEL N TS -
associate:
Proportion of ownership interest
BAEELS LD
Form of Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s
Name of business incorporation  issued and effective Held by the Held by Principal
associate structure and operation  paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries activity
FEMA LR BETRAR AREN
AUNTERE FBEERA  EEH BB Y i ARAHE  MEBRARE FEEY
Goal Creation Incorporated  Hong Kang 100 shares of  49% - 49% Investing in Virtual Reality
Game Limited Bl BE HK$1 each and Mixed Reality Project
BB EEER AR 100f& REERERRESERE
BRIBTHORS B
(a) Fair value of Investments (a) HEZAFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
associate is a private company and there was no
quote market price available for the investment.

NERMLEER  AEB 2 BLA QT
RIWART BABRE L ET ISR

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(b)

(c)

17. RBIEQTFMER (F)

Amount due from an associate (b) PEUERE AR ZFKIE
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, EWEEE R R RIBBE R R 5
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance BREREZRER -ZERTINET
is denominated in HK$ and approximate to their fair FTEREEQNFERS -
value.
The loan is unsecured, bearing approximately 2.95% (c) EXEBEER LEFFL2.95%: 5
interest rate annually and repayable in September REAR_ZE-—NFNLAEE-
2019.
It is expected that the time deposit will be kept rolling EEReREEN RS TERTRR
in a financial institution which is with high-credit- ARRKRREREELER AKEER
quality, the management of the Group considers that ERRERNEERR & A EED
the credit risk and the corresponding expected credit FEEBEBILTEK
loss of the loan were immaterial.
Summarized financial information in respect of the ERAZZEBE NN BERSNE
material associate is set out below. The summarized I - AT B ER B 280 E
financial information below represents amount shown RABRBEEEVBERELEANRR 2
in the associates’ financial statements prepared in WA ReE:
accordance with HKFRSs:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Current assets MENE E 34,306 -
Current liabilities mEBE (34,315) (5]
Net liabilities BEEHE (9 (5]
Share of net liabilities SMEBEFE (5) (3)
Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year FEER (4) (5]
Dividend received from the associate FREHEEE QRIS
during the year = -
Cash flows from operating activities KREXEBrReRE (4) (5]
Cash flows from investing activities REEXEBZBRERE 492 -
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBZRERE 33,812 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. FEUXARSR
The aging of the Group’s trade receivables based on the REBERBEZREH 2 BURFERE DT
invoice date is analysed as follows: W
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 30 days 30B A 786 1,058
31-60 days 31%60H 142 107
61-90 days B61%90H 4 50
Over 90 days 90H M £ 48 62
980 1,277
Less: Allowance for expected B TEHEEEERE
credit losses (11) -
969 1,277
For cinema business and filmed entertainment, new media M ERANEFIREE HEERAER
exploitations and licensing business segment, the credit HEEBS>HME AEBETERRP
terms granted by the Group to its customers normally TEEBEH-—MBERESSTWEI0E -
ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days. The 7N £2 (B B o S H ok Uk (O] e Uk R 08 4 RS AR
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding B FREIEEAE THmTmELs-
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by A FEWBR R FE AR — F AU [ml -
senior management. All trade receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.
The aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due B8 BB R E R IR R 2 Rk 5 T 1A
but not impaired are as follows: ™
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Past due but nat impaired: £ 40 BB R (5
Less than 1 month past due BERE A AR 142 107
1 to 3 months past due #HA1 = 3@ B 4 50
More than 3 months past due B HASME A A & 48 62
194 219

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

HE—

18.

19.

E-NFZA=+—HIFFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables at 31 March 2018 and 2018 that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables at 31 March 2013 and 2018 that were past
due but not impaired related to customers that had a
good track record with the Group or with appropriate
impairment allowance accounted for. Based on past
experience, management believes that no further
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

18. FEUTAES (&)

R-E—NFR-_T—NF=ZA=+—8"
I 2 38 HA s R B 2 B WK TE BR3P B 3 HR i
Rtk BPER-

RZE-NERFE—N\F=ZA=1+—8H"
2 #60 HR {8 R (B 2 B U SR I8 Ty B — HE BE 7R
EEBERIIR SN EEEE RERE
FErEFPEBE - BEBELR ARNEEE
=W EEREFHRERDER AT 2B
m - E1PEREHAERZSEHIELTEIN
BERB FAEBVERZSEKRBTRE
A4 IR G o

19. HEIHE - #eRWAAFR

]

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAET

Other receivables H e W 5k I8 332 496
Deposits and prepayments (note) e RIBNFIE (Fat) 2,600 29,507
2,932 30,003

note:

As at 31 March 2018, included in the balance was a deposit
paid of approximately RMB19,715,000 (equivalent to
HK$24,604,000) to be refunded. During the year ended 31
March 2018, the Group has entered into intention contracts in
order to obtain marketing researches for several investing
projects. The Group has paid a deposit of RMB32,000,000
(equivalent to HK$39,936,000). The Group has terminated the
investment plans, the vendor agreed to repay the deposit. During
the two years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019, the full amount
has been refunded from the vendor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

20. PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR

INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS

Pursuant to the announcement for the joint venture
agreement (“JV agreement”) dated 9 June 2011, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into a JV agreement
with CineChina Limited (“CineChina”) for the investment of
cinema business in the PRC.

The payments were made to CineChina and to an
independent third party, for the purpose of materialising
the JV agreement:

20. EﬂiﬁlﬁﬁﬁrﬂﬁﬁiﬁZ%

BEBRHA-_Z——FXANLBEBRAE
wE (68 HEDAEZAE AAF—
XM B QA B CineChina Limited
([CineChina J ) Bt £ R BI3% & 20t £ 75 5]
MNEEWE-e

KTy "% E A E W M < CineChina
N—2BIE= A

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAET

Amount paid to CineChina % 4 F CineChina 2 58 2,315 2,478
Amount paid to an independent third party X4 F— &8 E =5 2B 3,097 3,315
5,412 5,793

Under the prevailing legal requirements in the PRC,
certain restrictions are imposed on foreign investors for
taking up majority stake in cinema business in the PRC. In
accordance with legal opinion from PRC lawyer, the
approval for engaging in the foregoing business by the
subsidiaries of the Company has not been obtained from
the respective PRC authorities during the year ended 31
March 2012 and the organising of the above cinema
business had not been completed at 31 March 2012.
CineChina and an independent third party (collectively,
“these parties”) held the fund for the Group and would
settle the cost incurred in procurement of the investment
of cinema business in the PRC.

BRERTHPBEEEZRE IBEKEEE
FREBAZRESAKBOERSXZIET
PR IRIEFEIEAMRHOEEER  HE
BB —FE=-A=+—HIEFEAXRT
WEARIHMARERBTEE B ERS £
MmER B FiigREBEcEHATIERZ
E-——F=ZA=Z=t+—"BHEHARTK-
CineChina  — &% B E =75 (#iE [ZE
FOFDRETEEREES UEENE
B EREE 2K -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

20. PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR 20. ABRBEERBRASHIMTZR

INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS (Continued)

By an internal group reorganization the capital of Shanghai
Bingo was transferred from a domestic enterprise to a
sino-foreign joint venture enterprise to comply with the
relevant regulatory requirement for foreign investors to
operate cinema business in the PRC during the year
ended 31 March 2013. The Group legally owned 75%
equity interests in Shanghai Bingo to operate the cinema
business by mid- February 2013. The results of the
cinema projects, including Linan and Hangzhou cinema
projects, legally owned by Shanghai Bingo are consolidated
into that of the Group after completion of the internal
group reorganization. Pursuant to the agreement entered
into between the Group and these parties on 6 December
2012, these parties in principle agreed to act as a
conduit of payment on behalf of the Group for the
development of the cinema business in the PRC. These
parties have substantially utilized the funds for the cinema
business through their connection in the PRC.

The management of the Company has taken into account
the past repayment record, adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
of these parties and estimated that the expected credit
loss rate was insignificant and no expected credit loss was
recognized upon adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018
and during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

21. FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS

(a)

Films in progress

21,

EHERCRERWE

(a) EHEE

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Cost 2%
At the beginning of the year F1) - 9,264
Disposals of subsidiaries HE KT E R A - (9,264)
At the end of the year F - -
Deduct: Accumulated amortization AR EERBEEE
and impairment losses
At the beginning of year F19 - 9,264
Eliminated upon disposals of subsidiaries 7 & i & 2 &) i & 54 - (9,264)
At the end of year Far - -
Net book value REFE
At the end of year Far - -

The film in progress was measured at cost less any

identifiable impairment loss.

In December 2017, High Amuse Limited and its
subsidiaries of the Group which owned the film in
progress related to CJ7 were disposed to a related
company, The Star Overseas Limited (Note 34).

FE BB R 1R AR AE ] AT 38 Rl R (B

EiEsE-

RZE—+F+_A AEEEKE
BERARMEBEEBEBRII7RAE
HEXNNBARE T MM
FIE2EBINERAR (HFE34) °

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

21. FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS (Continued) 21, EREXRERNEE (&)

(b) Film rights (b) EBEIRE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Cost 2%
At the beginning of the year F1) 35,825 42,554
Disposals of subsidiaries HE KT E R A - (6,729)
At the end of the year FR 35,825 35,825

Deduct: Accumulated amortization AR EERBEEE
and impairment losses

At the beginning of year F19 35,825 42,554
Eliminated upon disposals of subsidiaries 7 & i & 2 &) i & 54 - (6,729)
35,825 35,825
At the end of year Far - -
Net book value BRENRE
At the end of year Far - -
In December 2017, High Amuse Limited and its RNZEBE—+HF+-H KEFBDBE
subsidiaries of the Group which owned the film rights BERATREESR [RI75HEEH
in CJ7 Super Q Team were disposed to a related I B RENHBRRE T —
company, The Star Overseas Limited (Note 34). REB AR 2BEINER NG (e

M BmERMEI4L)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. BeaRBeEEY

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAETT
Cash at banks and in hand RIT R FEEE S 60,926 95,995
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on RITHELRENTBHBTEFRANMEZ FH
daily bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group’s FEBIAE - AEFBR -—S—NER—
bank balances and cash at 31 March 2019 and 2018 E-NE=A=+—RA2ZHRTEHLES

approximate their corresponding carrying amounts. AT EEHEMAEEEEEE-

% ANNUAL REPORT £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

HE—

22,

23.

E-NFZA=+—HIFFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, deposits and cash placed with
banks in Mainland China amounted to approximately
HK$23,180,000 (2018: HK$29,937,000). Remittance
of funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the government of Mainland China.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.125% to 0.25% (2018: 0.01% to 0.05%)
per annum.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances and
concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks and financial institution are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for expected
credit losses is provided.

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging of the Group’s trade payables based on the
invoice date is analysed as follows:

22,

23.

BeRBA&FEM(E)

RZZBE-—NF=ZA=+—8B FHRAFEH
NIRRT ZEREBRAAHAY
23,180,000 T (=& — \ & :
29,937.,000/& 7T ) - & & i i B A
785 Fp B 9 3 DR AR A 2 AR B SN A AR
AR IRGIPTARIR

SR 1T 458410 B F0.125% £0.25% (— %
— \4F : 0.01% Z=0.05% ) & 71 55 | K &t
5 0

BE_ZT-NF=A=+—BHLEFE &
SEHRITERETRENME LS L AR -
HFFRITREREBEOATREIERK
B L IEHE BB R IR R

FE {1 RR X

AEERBEHZAPNENERZERED
Mo :

2019 2018

—B-AF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET TET

Within 30 days 30H UK 899 1,500
31-80 days 31Z60H 2 -
61-90 days B61%90H 3 -
Over 90 days 90H A £ 5 -
909 1,500

Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30
days.

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

R 2 R — R A30R AR -

FrETEAEY RUtEMNEREANKREE
WRBEAFERIERE-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

24, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND

24,

BEliEe « HtEMARREE

ACCRUALS ATRIR
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Customer’s deposits and receipts BPke RIEMGRIAE (MET)
in advance (note 1) - 8,523
Other payables and accruals HAth [l < 5138 I FE 5T RRR
(note 2) (Hit2) 2,969 8,914
2,969 17,437

notes: /;ﬁ/?f .

1. As at 31 March 2018, the balance was a prepaid amount 1. RZZE—)\FZA=+—H &#HB8EER
in the membership card by the customers. The balance will Fatd & REVFENFRIA - B RE RN
be recognized as income when it is probable that the BAH@AIEERAAEEBBHAN AR
economic benefits will flow to the Group and these benefits A ERERABBA -ROTEABEH
can be measured reliably. The balances were classified as S LR FISHEE ARSI EAENA
contract liabilities at the initial application of HKFRS 15 as & (FEHRHE25) -
detailed in Note 25.

2. Included in the amount mainly represents an auditor’s 2. SHEPEZEENHE4B800,000% T (=
remuneration of approximately HK$800,000 (2018: =— )\ :750,000/%7T) °
HK$750,000).

3. Al of the other payables and accruals are expected to be 3. FBEHMEMNKIERETERBBEER
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. —FREENIREREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019

Bz

—E-NF=ZA=+—HIFE

25. CONTRACTS LIABILITIES

25. S¥AaE

HK$'000

FET

As at 31 March 2018 R=ZB-NF=ZA=+-— -
Effect arising from initial application of 1) *Vﬁﬁ%ﬁé Bt s s 4E R 'J F159R A

HKFRS 15 (Note 2(b]) & (fit2(b)) 8,523

As at 1 April 2018 R-ZE—-NFMA—H 8,523

Revenue recognized during the year in relation ~ FRERBBELEE S LB EH KT

to carried-forward contract liabilities (4,842)

Receipt in advance from customers for the year 4 RUEE F #5% 4,637

Currency realignment HE 5, 58 B (562)

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE—-NhE=A=+—H 7,756

Cinema investment and management

The balance was a prepaid amount in the membership
card by the customers. The balance will be recognized as
income when the customers buy the movies tickets, and
the corresponding movie was broadcasted, and snacks by
utilizing the prepaid amount in the membership card.

The timing of the transfer of the movies tickets and
snacks are at the discretion of the customers and the
management considers that the contract liabilities would
not have significant financing component.

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle in respect of cinema
investment and management segment and the whole
balances are classified as current.

No revenue was recognized in the current year relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

EERERERER

RHRREPREERNBENRE-BEEP
ﬁﬁﬁa/ﬁ:f*ﬁﬁ/ﬁ%ﬂ EEZE (HER
BERXCKEL) RTRE  BHREHER /W

S o

o ¢

BREFENTROBEZEFPER &
EERARGHEBYEEAREHAKED

FEGHNABRMINASREZRRERE
EOBNEEKLBHMANGES GHRER
DERRE -

4R 3 A
g o

E AR = A A B 40 B (T
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 February 2010, the Company entered into the
service agreement with Mr. Chiau whereby the Company
appointed Mr. Chiau as an executive director of the
Company and Mr. Chiau accepted the appointment with
prescribed duties for an initial term of five year from 1
June 2010. In consideration of the performance by Mr.
Chiau of his duties for the Company, the Company shall,
as a remuneration package to issue the convertible bonds
to Mr. Chiau with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$45 million and outstanding amount as at 31 March
2019 was HK$30 million (2018: HK$30 million). Details
are described in Note 32.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability
and equity components. The fair value of the liability
component, which was determined by independent
professional valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited on
the date of issue, is the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate of 16.73% and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
but without the conversion option. The residual amount is
assigned as the equity component and is included in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF
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HE—

E-NFZA=+—HIFFE

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

27.

The movement of the liability component and equity

26. A[EMBRREF (E)

FR-AIMBEFAESS RESRHD 2

component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out BEHIINT
below:
Liability Equity
Component Component
=N g:i%s) s E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
At 1 April 2017 NRZE—+FMH—H 17,617 76,520
Imputed interest charged EEHERE 3,166 -
At 31 March 2018 RZFE-NF=ZH=+—H 20,783 76,520
Imputed interest charged EETHERN L 3,835 -
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—H 24,618 76,520
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Mature later than 1 year —F1& 5| 5 24,618 20,783
SHARE CAPITAL 27. &&X
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
R=F-NE=A=1-H R-F-N\E=A=1-H
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RGBHA HE RIAEE HfE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each FRO.04E T2 LBR
Authorised: EIE
At the beginning and at the end ENRER
of the year 5,000,000 200,000 5,000,000 200,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each FR0.04% T2 LBR
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER:
At the beginning and at the end EMRER
of the year 3,421,539 136,861 3,421,539 136,861

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group maintains its net asset position.

As at the year ended, interest bearing debt and total cash
balances are approximately HK$24,618,000 (2018:
HK$20,783,000) and HK$60,926,000 (2018:
95,995,000) respectively. As the total cash amounts are
higher than the interest bearing debt amounts, the net
debt-to-equity ratio is not applicable.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement.
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B ()
axER
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LiFw - AEEEREAZBEERBRR
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B EBRARAHEATRDRL AHE
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AEBEH BRI MNEREEARE KK
ERSHA ALD R (8L RE S E &K
) B R AT E AR T R 2 4T B R AR R
FEZHEBRGFE YRBEERRE2EL
HABEBEARB-BHE_ZT-NAF=FH
St-BULEFE ARERBEEEFE
AR ©

RER FEEBRBSEREED RN
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BE_F—NF=ZA=1+—HIFE

28. RESERVES 28. f&fE
The Company PN
Equity
component of Share
Share  Contributed convertible options  Accumulated
premium surplus bonds reserve losses Total
TRRES
RHEE R8BS ZEREHA BRERE itER st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FiEn TR TAL TR TR FiEn
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tF¥MA-A 420810 1,988 76,520 102,095 (637,401) (35,988)
Lapse of share options BIRELY - - - (2,410) 2.410 -
Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - (8,049) (8,049)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=1-H 420810 1,988 76,520 99,685 (643,040) (44,037)
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FWA-A 420,810 1,988 76,520 99,685 (643,040) (44,037)
Equity settled share option A EE RERH
arrangement - - - 2,181 - 2,181
Lapse of share options BRELY - - - (48,844) 48,844 -
Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - (41,641) (41,641)
At 31 March 20189 RZE-NE=A=1-8 420,810 1,988 76,520 53,022 (635,837) (83,497)
At 31 March 20183, no reserves is available for RZE—NFZA=Z+—H BEIHEHS
distribution to owners of the Company (2018: Nil). RFPFARAANFBEBEAZBE(ZE—N\F:
) o
The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of f& 19 & (B Th R BTN R 19 T &= A -
the Company.
The contributed surplus represents the difference EMBBRERAEESHB AR TS
between the combined net assets of the subsidiaries ZHBRARIAHEEFERARRRMGE

acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the Bfflz Z5 e
shares of the Company at the time of the Group
reorganisation.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors,
eligible employees and participants who have contributed
to the Group and will expire on 14 August 2022. Under
the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to certain employees of the Group and any
distributor, contractor, business partner, promoter, service
provider, customer, supplier, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group in
recognition of their contribution to the Group.

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued annually upon
the exercise of all options which initially shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme and thereafter, if
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
(“Scheme Mandate Limit") as at the date of approval of
the refreshed limit by the Shareholders. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the number of Shares to be issued upon
the exercise of all the Options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in
aggregate within any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company's shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of his, her or its associates in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of offer
of the option exceeding the higher of O0.1% of the
Company's shares in issue and with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
board of directors of the Company and the exercise price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of specific categories of options and the fair value
of options are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Schemes
and any other schemes and movements in such holdings
during the year were as follow:
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29. FRERiERTE (&)

BRHZBREGERRL ASHEA21H
N EOBRENIBTRER BR
BUREMNBEREEAEEARAESTS
BEE<BAMBYARBETE BITEES
AEEROARBBRMNE L ARz KT
B: (I ARFROHNERFEL B AR E
2 XA 2T E i) A2 BB
HE=fF2z&2%"

BREOER R BRI MBI AFEZFBEH
Rz e M BwmRMEI2 -

TR ZEFEMEMEMFERTRE
ZERENEZEFHFBMT

Number of shares issuable under options held

BREFMEBRETTFRITZROBE
Balance at Balance at
Share 1 April 31 March
option 2018 2019
type R-ZE-N\F R-E-h&F
Category BRE H—H Granted Lapsed =A=+-—H
&5 EE 28R B BAK 2R
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR TR TR TR
Directors 5= 2014A 15,000 - (3,000) 12,000
2015A 23,000 - (3,000) 20,000
2016A 45,000 - (3,000) 42,000
2017A 34,000 - - 34,000
2018A - 30,000 - 30,000
Employees BB 2018A - 60,000 - 60,000
Advisors a8 2014A 277,140 - (3,340) 273,800
2015A 132,000 - (128,000) 4,000
2015B 50,000 - (50,000) -
2016A 294,000 - (288,000) 6,000
2017A 125,000 - (125,000) -
2018A - 90,000 - 90,000
995,140 180,000 (603,340) 571,800

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

29.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Schemes and any other schemes during the year ended

31 March 2018:

MR iEEHE ()

BE—
Fitgl Rk

femean T

—NEF=ZA=1t—HLEFE %
Eﬂﬁ@.ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ‘ﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬁz,ﬂ%

Number of shares issuable under options held

RIEPTFF B AR ] T 317 2 Iein BB

Balance at Balance at
Share 1 April 31 March
option 2017 2018
type R-_T—+t4F RZZE—N\F
Category i A mA—A Granted Lapsed ZA=+—H
Ll R S [Esgas [P -
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T % T A% T & T
Directors ) 2012A 21,000 - (21,000) -
2014A 15,000 - - 15,000
2015A 23,000 - - 23,000
201B6A 45,000 - - 45,000
2017A 34,000 - - 34,000
Employees == 2012A 10,000 - (10,000) -
Advisors fEa 2014A 277,140 - - 277,140
2015A 132,000 - - 132,000
2015B 50,000 - - 50,000
201B6A 294,000 - - 294,000
2017A 125,000 - - 125,000
1,026,140 - (31,000) 995,140
The Company has granted share options and recognised ARABIREBZ-_ZE—HAE=A=+—81t

an expense as share-based payments for the year ended
31 March 2019 with an amount of HK$2,181,000

(2018: Nil).
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30. COMMITMENTS 30. #A&iE
Operating lease commitments — The Group as lessee REBHAE — xEBEERFEBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEBR REERDE 2 TR HEL
commitments for future minimum lease payments under SHNET 2 REKEHEE N FORERE
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties HERZH T :

which fall due as follows:

2019 2018

ZE-hEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Within one year —FR 3,562 4,535
In the second to fifth year, inclusve  F-FEZFAF (REEEWTF) 14,078 16,353
More than five years HBEAF 7,175 10,552
24,815 31,440

The Group leases a number of properties under operating REBRBEKEHOBESZEY R -HY
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to fifteen e R2E15F (ZE—\F:1£815
years (2018: one to fifteen years), with an option to F) REmAREAEEEGHEETEE
renew the lease and renegotiated the terms at the expiry HEBEENBLORERGER - HERAD

date as mutually agreed between the Group and BIESAEE -
respective landlords. None of the leases include
contingent rental.
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31. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS REATRAERXS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these MEZEEE 7}%%%2%,@11@%5%%&@?2%

consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into BN REFESHET T ENBEEATR
the following material related party and connected BT 5 o

transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEESEASTHM

TEEBABZHM (BEMEI10MH
BREXNTARREEZHIE) AT :

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’'s directors
as disclosed in Note 10 is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances EE0E e RME
and other benefits E M EF 842 954
Share-based payments VARG /5 B0 2 19 3K 576 -
1,418 954
(b) Connected transactions (b) BEERZH
2019 2018
ZE-NF — N\
Name of connected parties  Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
BEALTER REME TERT FHET
Goal Creation Game Limited Interest Income from loan to an 492 -
associate (Note 17)
Blm BB AR AR A — B & A R HE B R A S A
(KieE17)
The Star Overseas Limited Acquisition of subsidiaries from the - 750

(note 1) Group (Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements)
ERBINERAT WIEAREBRB AR (5AE5HBHE
(K1a£1) Bt&34)
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31. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 3. MEALTERREXS (&)

(Continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with connected parties (c) EEBEEALTZRBELES
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
Name of connected parties = Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALTER REME TR FHET
CineChina Limited Receivable of the Group for payment 2,315 2,478
(note 2] (K1:E2) for procurement for investment
of Cinema Business
REERKREXRES 2N
FEW 2 k1A
note 1: Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director and beneficial Kiit1: ERBINERATEERERREAEX
shareholder of The Star Overseas Limited, is an EZtEZE-—mF-ARNERERER
executive director of the Company since 6 January AIMITES Ft RBE_T—NF
2014. Accordingly, The Star Overseas Limited is RZZ-N\F=ZRA=+—HILFE £
considered a connected party during the years ended 188 5N B R A B4 AR 5 GEM £ AR Al
31 March 2019 and 2018 under GEM Listing Rules. BERZEEANT-
note 2: CineChina Limited holds 30% equity interest in ffz#2 :  CineChina Limited 358 42 B/ B A &)
subsidiaries of the Company and it is considered a 30% 2 = AR AGEM LR RAITE T
connected party under the GEM Listing Rules. The ZEBALT -BER S 2 FIEHNM T
details of the connected transaction is listed in Note 20. 20-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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The Company has the convertible bonds and share option
scheme for directors, employees and advisors of the
Group. Details of the convertible bonds and share options
are as follows:

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Convertible bonds

Issuer:

Principal amount:

Issue date:

Maturity date:

Interest:

Conversion price:

The Company

million

1 June 2010
Ten years from the date of issue
Zero coupon

Share Option Scheme

HK$0.136 per share

HK$45 million in aggregate on issue
date and the outstanding amount as
at 31 March 2019 was HK$30

Details of specific categories of options are as follow:

The fair value of share options which were calculated
by binomial option pricing model with the following

assumptions:

Option type:
Grant date:

Number of options
granted:
Exercise periad:

Exercise price:
Fair value:

BREER:
FHAE:

REBREHE -

Ifed:
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2014A
17-4-2014
—T-mEF
MA++tR
304,140,000

17-4-2014-
16-4-2019
ZE-mE

mAT+AZE
ZE-nE
MA+~A
HK$0.364/% 1T
HK$45,500,000
B

2015A
13-7-2015
ZT-0F
tA+=A
161,000,000

13-7-2015-
12:7-2020
“T-0%F

tA+=RE
ZZ-%F
tA+ZH
HK$0.2357% 1
HK$16,800,000
B
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32. LIt HEREZ TR

ARARRAREES EERBRHEMHRA
BRES REREE A RRES LB

Pk FBAT

RRES

BITA ZN/NE

REH: RETHAHNEESR

45,000,000/ 7t ' m R
—E-hAEFE=ZA=+—H
i A # 30,000,000

T A LA
REAM:  —F-FFAA-H
BIHA B 817 B IR
Flg zE
PR F180.136% 7T
B PR T B
H AR 0 T

ER-RAEREEEEAE ZBRE

NEETERATRE:

20158 2016A 2017A 2018A"
11-9-2015 7-7-2016 332017 1792018
Z2-EF ZE-1F ZEtf 20\
NAT-A tAtA =A=H NATtAR

50,000,000 342,000,000 159,000,000 180,000,000
11-82015- 7-7-2016- 3-3-2017- 17-82018-
10-9-2020 6-7-2021 2-3-2022 16-9-2023
ZT-%F ZE-RFE “E-\&F “Z-N\E
NAT—BZE tAtRE ZA=H% hATtRZE
—Z-%F —Z--F —2-C —E-=%
NATH tAXH =AZH NA+AA
HK$0.200%T  HK$0.180%7  HK$0.135%7T  HK$0.042% 1T
HK$4,800,000 HK$26,600,000 HK$8,640,000 HK$2,181,000
BT BT BT BT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 32.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Option type: BRI

Share price as at grant date: R A B AR (E -
Nature of the options: EAE 2 TS
Risk-free rate: A [ o ) 2
Expected life of the options: R 2 TR EASF B
Expected volatility: SEEEA R
Expected dividend yield: T8 HA IR B i el 3
Exercise multiple: TEEE:

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
of the Company’s share prices. Expected dividends were
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The closing price of the shares of the Company on the date
of the options granted (i.e. 17 September 2018]) is
HK$0.042.

LI fn B EREZ 18 (&)
BREE(E)

2018A
HK$0.0427% ¢
Call 288
2.277%

5 years F
63%

0%

2.91-2.97

TEHR R Ty AR R BN B8 Z B K
REE -FHRENBERESELE T
BWABBRRWEEZE  AJREHETRF
ERKEATE-

RELBREZR (M= N\FLA
THER) AR F RGBT ERD.042
BITe
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2019

33. EEMBLATZHER

RZZE-NEF=ZA=+—H HWEBRAZ

are as follows: ESR NN
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital  held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries TMRIL legal entity BRITR AAAELEZREAER  activities
WEAREE EEMY EEERER HERA  Directly Indirectly FTEEX
BB &
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Movie
HEERNA N company 1T production
BREEAA EYRE
Billion Success Corporation ~ Hong Kang Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Licensing
Limited 5 company 18T business
ERBRAF BREERA RHERD
Bingo Cinema Investment Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 70 Cinema
Company Limited 5 company 10,000/ ¢ investment
HEEYRREBRAF BEREMERA Fhixg
Bingo Cinema Management ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 70  Cinema
Company Limited B0 company 10,000% 7T management
HREFREEERAA AREERA ThER
Bingo Management Services Hong Kang Limited liability HK$1 100 - Management
Limited 5 company 18T services
tRERRBERAF BREERA ERR%
Bingo Mavie Development Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Movie
Limited B0 company 18T production
HeEYERBRAF BREERT BR
Brillant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 70  Cinema
o2l YNG B0 company 18T management
BREERA FhER
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. EEMBLTZHE (&)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital ~ held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries ML/ legal entity BRETR AAREEZREAER  activities
WELAR AR EE LEERER BMERA  Directly Indirectly FEE#H
BEE EiE:3
% %

Easybuild Assets BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment
Management EBEAHS company (E holding
Limited BREERT REEK

SREEEBARRT

Emcom (HK) Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment

FEEA (BE)BRATF B company 10%7T holding

BREAEAF REEK

Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 100 - Cartoon

ZEERRA 0 company 15T production

BREERA RERE

Lofty Gain Investments BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Movie
Limited EERELFS company (E production

HABRERARAF BREERR BYRIE

Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment

BBEARAT HEERLES company (E5 holding

BREAEAF REEK

Shanghai Caike Cinema PRC Limited liability US$100,000 - 70 Cinema
Management and H company 100,000% 1T management
Consultancy Limited. ¥ BREAEATF ThER

HEXRTRERER

ﬁ BE//:\\ Ej (Ht1)
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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33. FEMBLTIZER(E)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital  held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries TMARIL legal entity BRTR AARELEZREAER  activities
MEAREE XY LEERER #BERA  Directly Indirectly FEEK
H# EikE
% %
Huichi (Shanghai) PRC Limited liability ~ US$500,000 - 70  Cinema
Consultancy Limited*? & company 500,000% T investment
B (-8 REAKS BREERT FhRIRE
ﬁ BE //:\\ Ej (K1)
Shanghai Huichi Management PRC Limited liability ~ RMB100,000 - 70 Cinema
and Consultancy Co., Ltd.* company ARE investment
HEEREREARRAR BREERA 100,0007t ThiRE
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) PRC Limited liability RMBG6,000,000 - 52.5 Cinema business
Company Limited* h campany AR T
tREZR(LE)FERAR BEREERAF 6,000,000t
Linan Bingo Cinema PRC Limited liability ~ RMB500,000 - 52.5  Cinema business
Company Limited* H company ARK ThRER
RzheEYRAERAE BEREAERAF 500,000
Hangzhou Bingo Cinema PRC Limited liability ~ RMB500,000 - 52.5 Cinema business
Company Limited * H company ARE FhEK
N REFREARAE BREERT 500,000
note: Kt :
1. Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under 1. RERBEEZERIIIBEERE-

PRC law.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. EEMBLTFZHE(E)
(Continued)

The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned TXRJI REABEAFEREZ 2 ANEEIF L E
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling  F{/B 2R A 2 715

interests:
Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interests and voting
place of rights held by
business non-controlling interests  Profit/(Loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary TMRLBER FEREZFE2ESERS  noncontrolling interests  non-controlling interests
WEAREE TEEENE RRFELA FEREZELEN/ (FR) At ERES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AF —2-\F  ZB-AFf -—T)\§ ZB-hfF ZZ)\F
HK$'000 HK$000 = HK$'000 HK$000
THR TART TARL TAL
Bingo Ginema (Shanghai) HEEYR (L) PRC 47.5% 47.5% 469 (124) 16,135 16,992
Company Limited BRAR
Individually immaterial subsidiaries 7 FEE k8% 2 s (6,279) (5,762)

with non-controling interests (ERIEEN VNG

9,856 11,230

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s TREINEBEEEAFFIERER I AE
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set WMB AT ZHBEERBE. NiBI &
out below. The summarized financial information below B EREBRRNKE AT IEIZ %8

represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)\F

Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company Lt EFR (L8) HK$’'000 HK$'000
Limited BRAA] FET FET
Non-current assets EMEBEE 9,704 11,713
Current assets TENE B 34,036 35,891

Current liabilities B A& (9,771) (11,831)
Turnover S 38,048 46,929

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. MEBATZHE ()
(Continued)
2019 2018
—EB-AF —E-NF

Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company EEE (L8) HK$'000 HK$'000

Limited AR AT THET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AT EIEARERSF, (Ei8)

- owners of the Company Sl VNCIE 2SN 519 (137)

- non-controlling interest — i 469 (124)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income, UTEGEMZE (BB)

attributable to: WA f e -

- owners of the Company — RRAHEAB A (947) 2,109

- non-controlling interest — FFERER (858) 1,908
Net cash generated from,/(used in) KEZBME (R 2

operating activities W& FE 875 (31,545)
Net cash generated from investing REEHAEZHREIFRE

activities (1,135) 251
Net cash generated from financing METHSC RS FHE

activities - -

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. HERBLT

On 6 December 2017, the Company and The Star
Overseas Limited, which is wholly owned by Ms. Chow
Man Ki Kelly, an executive director of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to
that agreement, the Company agreed to sell and The Star
Overseas Limited agreed to acquire 100% equity of High
Amuse Limited at a consideration of HK$500,000 plus
the amount equivalent to the aggregate bank balance of
High Amuse Limited and its subsidiaries upon completion,
which is approximately HK$250,000. The disposal has
been completed on 18 December 2017, on which date
the control of High Amuse Limited was passed to The Star
Overseas Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HERBLATE (8)
The aggregate amounts of the assets and liabilities MBARNEERMEENEERBER
attributable to the subsidiaries on the date of disposal BT

were as follow:

HK$'000
FTERT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE !
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEFEY 250
Trade receivables JE L BR X 63
Other receivables and prepayments A JE W 5k I8 K TR AT 5RIE 78
Trade payables FETBR X (176)
Other payables and accruals H b < 30E K B AT SRIE (2,358)
(2,143)
Less: Minority interest DB R ER (18)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange SHENEZERELFEERT S EZER
difference from exchange reserve to
profit or loss 515
(1,646)
Amount due to the Company disposed of B HERNARATIRIE 250
Gain on disposal s W 2,146
Consideration RE 750
Satisfy by: AT AR I
Cash Re 750

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
EEEEERERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HERBLATE (8)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year did not FRAEENMBARTEEN —FRIL

contribute significantly to the results and cash flows of the EAREENEERRERETREKRE

Group during the year prior to the disposal. Bk o

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FRALEWNBARINRE RREEEYR

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follow: NRBOMT

HK$’000
FTET

Cash consideration ReERE 750

Cash and bank balances disposed of Frit & 2R & RIRTT4 R (250)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BT EMNBARMNE S RRSEED

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries MA R 500
35. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 35. MEMREE

After the reporting period, the Company announced that RWERE  RAATEMRAEHR W

the capital reorganisation, which involves: Ko

()  every four then existing shares of HK$0.04 of the () AARSEUEO04ETHERIRA
Company combined into one consolidated share of I8 & B B —IRO.168 T8 & O i%
HK$0.18; L

(i) a reduction of the nominal value for each issued (i) BEREZETEKRN 2ZEEHO.16
consolidated share from HK$0.16 to HK$0.01; BEITHIRZEO.0TE T

(i) a subdivision of each authorised but unissued (i) BHEREEOI16B T2 AFEKRE
consolidated share of HK$0.16 each into sixteen TEMROFEAE T A AKREREE
new shares of HK$0.01 each; and O0.01BTZ# kD &

(iv) the exercise prices of the share options, the number (iv) FMEARBEIT(E(E - BAREEIT (R rT
of outstanding share options upon exercise of share EINERES R MRERHIRET
options, the conversion price and the number of TEIM A BRREERE FEHITHR
shares to be issued upon conversion of the NEEgRE:
outstanding convertible bonds were adjusted,

has become effective on 2 May 2019. For further details, RZZE—NFRAZBER -E—BFHG

please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 2 FEL2HARABBMAZZE-NFRAZA

May 2019. GOPNER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2019
HE LT NF=A=1+—HIFEF

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. ELFIMBIRAEE
COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RGBT — -
Interests in subsidiaries RHTB AT 2R 217,179 237,563
217,179 237,563
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hith R FIE i e &
prepayments Tt RIE 147 160
Cash and cash equivalents ReENMBFEFEY 9,842 26,092
9,989 26,252
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H fth FE AT 5018 K FE T R IE 1,778 4,229
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEE1<H BT /&8 2 B R IE 147,408 145,979
149,186 150,208
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETE (139,197) (123,956)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERABAE
LIABILITIES 77,982 113,607
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR (& 2 24,618 20,783
NET ASSETS EEFE 53,364 92,824
CAPITAL AND RESERVES PR AR R
Share capital &% A< 136,861 136,861
Reserves & (83,497) (44,037)
TOTAL EQUITY RE&HEE 53,364 92,824

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
EEEEERERAR
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMBHIRE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last ANEBERBETEMTEE 2B REERE
five financial years are as follows: [ESUNNE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hAE =—T-N\F ZT—+tF ZIT-RF ZT-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FET FET FHET FHET
RESULTS E4
Turnover EETE 38,048 47,877 45,230 74,774 76,961
Loss before taxation B A 1B (25,624) (10,542) (58,615) (44,745) (60,137)
Taxation | (918) (846) (1,001) (2,143) (2,839)
Loss befare B IEIE AR R 25 Al
non-controlling interests &8 (26,542) (11,388) (59,616) (46,888) (62,976)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A 132 846 (523) (2,458) (2,971
Loss attributable to owners AR FIHEE AJEL
of the Company BB (26,410) (10,542) (60,139) (49,346) (65,947)
Loss per share BiEB
— Basic and diluted (cents) — EZR&#5E (&)
(note) (M) (3.09) (1.23) (7.03) (5.84) (8.24)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“E-hnEFE —T)N\F —T—+F T-RF T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET FET TET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEAE 115,251 145,884 196,781 227,530 238,468
Total liabilities BEAS (37,316) (41,056) (84,533) (88,882) (95,273)
Non-controlling interests TR R 9,856 11,230 12,195 11,773 9,440
note: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 2 May 2019 Hiet: BROEGHABRE_T-—NFRAZAEN
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